Agent

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TAMPA AND WESTRA CONSTRUCTION CORP., IN THE AMOUNT OF \$5,640,792.98 FOR PROFESSIONAL DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES WITH A GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) IN CONNECTION WITH THE 20-C-00032; WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN-BUILD, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF TAMPA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-720, the City of Tampa ("City") entered into an Agreement with Westra Construction Corp. ("Firm") on September 17, 2020, to provide certain professional Design-Build services pertaining to the 20-C-00032; Water Main Improvements Design-Build ("Project"); and

WHEREAS, the City and the Firm desire to enter into an Agreement to provide certain professional Design-Build services with a GMP to the Project; and

WHEREAS, compensation for services shall not exceed the amount of \$5,640,792.98 as described in Exhibit E of this Agreement and funds for payment of said services are available in the appropriate accounts in the Budget of the City of Tampa.

#### NOW, THEREFORE

# BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAMPA, FLORIDA, THAT:

Section 1. This Agreement between the City of Tampa and Westra Construction Corp., for provision of professional Design-Build services pertaining to Contract 20-C-00032; Water Main Improvements Design-Build, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, is approved and authorized in its entirety or in substantially similar form.

Section 2. The Mayor of the City of Tampa is authorized and empowered to execute, and the City Clerk to attest and affix the official seal of the City of Tampa to, said Agreement on behalf of the City of Tampa.

Section 3. This resolution authorizes a design-build agreement between the City of Tampa and Westra Construction Corp. for the Citywide Water Main Replacements project with a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) in the amount of \$5,640,792.98 from the Water Bonds – Series 2021 Capital Projects Fund.

Section 4. The other proper officers of the City of Tampa are hereby authorized to do all things necessary and proper in order to carry out and make effective the provisions of this Resolution, which shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Tampa, Florida, on \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Shirley Juxy-Knowles
City Clerk Deputy Coffeet

Chairman/Chairman Pro-Tem, City Council

Approved as to Legal Sufficiency by:

e/s

Marcella T. Hamilton, Assistant City Attorney

PUZI-68927

# Agreement for Design-Build Services for

CONTRACT 20-C-00032; Citywide Water Main Improvements – Design Build, ("Project")

between

The City of Tampa, Florida ("City")

and

Westra Construction Corp. ("Firm")

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Pag	ge
ARTICLE 1	DEFINITIONS	
ARTICLE 2	SCOPE AND PHASING OF WORK	
ARTICLE 3	DESIGN PHASE SERVICES	
ARTICLE 4	CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES	
ARTICLE 5	COMPENSATION9	
ARTICLE 6	PAYMENT12	
ARTICLE 7	BOND	
ARTICLE 8	THE FIRM'S REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES	
ARTICLE 9	THE CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE	
ARTICLE 10	CONTRACT TIME20	
ARTICLE 11	CHANGES IN THE WORK21	
ARTICLE 12	INSPECTION/MONITORING/TESTING	
ARTICLE 13	DEFECTIVE WORK23	
ARTICLE 14	PROTECTION23	
ARTICLE 15	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT23	
ARTICLE 16	CLAIMS AND DISPUTES24	
ARTICLE 17	CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT24	
ARTICLE 18	DEFAULT AND TERMINATION24	
ARTICLE 19	AUDIT REQUIREMENTS26	
ARTICLE 20	COMPLETION AND INSPECTION27	
ARTICLE 21	OTHER WORK	
ARTICLE 22	DOCUMENT OWNERSHIP	
ARTICLE 23	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	
	INSURANCE29	
ARTICLE 25	NOTICES29	
	GOVERNING LAW30	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# (continued)

	Page
ARTICLE 27	ENTIRE AGREEMENT30
ARTICLE 28	SEVERABILITY30
ARTICLE 29	NONDISCRIMINATION/EEO/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION30
ARTICLE 30	EQUAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM30
ARTICLE 31	ETHICS31
ARTICLE 32	NO WAIVER OF RIGHTS32
ARTICLE 33	NO ESTOPPEL 32
ARTICLE 34	EXHIBITS INCORPORRATED32
ARTICLE 35	MISCELLANEOUS
EXHIBIT A	PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND
EXHIBIT B	FORM OF FINAL RELEASE AND AFFIDAVITB-1
EXHIBIT C	CITY'S EQUAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM
EXHIBIT D	PROJECT CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTSD-1
EXHIBIT E	GMP Proposal dated March 15, 2021, consisting of the Firm's Cover Letter, Project Narrative, GMP Pricing Schedule of Values, List of Allowances, List of Documents, Qualifications, Assumptions, and Clarifications, Construction Schedule
EXHIBIT F	INSURANCEF-1
EXHIBIT G	NOTIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCES

# AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN-BUILD AT RISK WITH A GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE ("GMP")

This Agreement (herein called "Agreement" or "Contract") is made and entered into at Tampa,
Florida, this day of, 20, by and between the CITY OF TAMPA, whose
address for the purpose of this Agreement is 315 West Kennedy Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33602, a
municipality organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida ("City"), and Westra
Construction Corp, a firm existing under the laws of the State of Florida the address of which is 1263
12th Avenue East, Palmetto, Florida, 34221, ("Firm") for the construction of Contract 20-C-00032;
Water Main Improvements Design-build ("Project") as designed by Westra Construction Corp. pursuant
to the Project Construction Documents listed in Exhibit D, attached hereto and made a part hereof, to be
located in Tampa, Florida. The Firm and City agree as set forth below.

# ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 Application for Payment shall mean an application submitted by the Firm for payment in accordance with the terms of the Agreement on approved forms and containing such information as is required under the Agreement or as may be reasonably required by the City in order to process such application.
- 1.2 Certificate for Payment shall mean a certificate issued by the City's Representative stating that on the basis of the City's observations and inspection, the work for which an Application for Payment has been submitted has been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 1.3 Change Order shall mean a written order requiring the performance of work or services not otherwise contemplated in the Agreement which also includes appropriate adjustments in the compensation and/or completion date pursuant to Article 11 of this Agreement and which is approved by the City Council and which amends the terms of the Agreement.
  - 1.4 City's Representative as defined in Section 9.1 hereof.
  - 1.5 Design-Build Fee as set forth in Section 5.2 hereof.
  - 1.6 Construction Phase Services as defined in Article 4 hereof.
- 1.7 Contract Documents shall mean this Agreement, any Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, Field Orders, all Exhibits to this Agreement, the Design Documents and all drawings and other documents referenced in the Project Construction Documents as listed in **Exhibit D**.
  - 1.8 Cost of Construction as defined in Section 5.4 hereof.
- 1.9 Day/Date The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically designated. If any date specified in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the date to which such reference is made shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.

- 1.10 Field Orders shall mean minor changes in the work covered by this Agreement not involving an adjustment to compensation or time under the Agreement and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such order shall be affected by a written order executed by the City's Representative, in accordance with Section 11.7 of the Agreement.
- 1.11 Guaranteed Completion Date shall mean the date by which the Firm is to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work required of it hereunder, as said dates may be adjusted pursuant to the terms hereof. The Guaranteed Completion Date calendar date or number of calendar days from the date of signature of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) or the issuance of permits sufficient to allow the start of on-site work (The Start of the Work), whichever comes later, which calendar date or number of calendar days shall be established in the GMP Proposal.
- 1.12 Guaranteed Maximum Price ("GMP") is the total amount established in the GMP Proposal which the Firm guarantees that the Cost of Construction for the entire Project, as such amount is adjusted pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, shall not exceed.
- 1.13 Owner's Contingency shall be the amount, if any, set aside in the GMP for which the City shall have sole discretion as to its use.
- 1.14 Project Construction Documents shall mean all drawings, plans, documents, specifications and technical material of any nature required for the permitting and construction of the Project as described in **Exhibit D**.
- 1.15 Substantial Completion shall mean the stage in the progress of the work when the work or designated portion of the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the City can occupy or utilize the work for its intended use.
- 1.16 Utilities shall mean all roadway, railways, drainage facilities, or public or private utility facilities, including, without limitation, any potable water facilities, any sanitary sewer facilities, any electrical power facilities, any telecommunication facilities, any television facilities or any gas facilities.
- 1.17 Work shall mean all work required under this Agreement, the Contract Documents or the Project Construction Documents, or any work that is related to the construction of the Project.
- 1,18 Work Directive Change shall mean a written directive to the Firm issued on or after the date the Agreement has been executed and signed by the City's Representative ordering additions, deletions or revisions to the scope of the Firm's services under this Agreement. Any change to the Cost of Construction required by a Work Directive Change, not otherwise compensated by means of monies designated in the GMP as 'Owner's Contingency', shall be incorporated in a Change Order which shall include adjustments in compensation and time of performance as are mutually agreed upon by the City and the Firm or which include such adjustments as the City deems appropriate subject to the Firm's right to make claims in connection with such adjustments pursuant to Article 16 of this Agreement. No expenditure of funds designated in the GMP as 'Owner's Contingency' shall be made without prior receipt of a Work Directive Change.
  - 1.19 Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday excluding official City holidays.

1.20 Beneficial Occupancy – shall mean the City's use of the work or portion thereof, excluding that described in 9.1.1.d, for the purpose intended.

# ARTICLE 2 SCOPE AND PHASING OF WORK

- 2.1 General Scope. The Firm shall construct the Project as specified in and in accordance with the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the Construction Phase Services described in Article 4 hereof, and otherwise perform all work as is required under the Contract Documents.
- 2.2 <u>Conditions Precedent.</u> The Firm shall not commence work in connection with the Project until the City has issued a written notice to proceed to the Firm.

# ARTICLE 3 DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

3.1 To the extent Design Phase or Construction Documents preparation activities occur during the course of this Agreement, the Firm shall consult with the City upon a mutually agreed upon basis regarding the design and constructability of the Project or portions thereof.

# ARTICLE 4 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

- 4.1 Upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent in Article 3 hereof (or waiver of any conditions precedent by the City), the Firm shall immediately commence the Construction Phase Services which shall include the following services:
- 4.1.1 The Firm shall construct the Project in accordance with the Project Construction Documents approved by the City which are listed in **Exhibit D** and incorporated herein by reference. The Firm's Project Narrative, Detailed Estimate and Document List are all specifically included in this Contract. These documents are enumerated under **Exhibit E**.
- 4.1.2 The scope of the Firm's Construction Phase Services shall include those services set forth herein and such other work as reasonably may be required in order for the Firm to complete the construction of the Project pursuant to the terms of the Contract Documents and the Project Construction Documents.
- 4.1.3 Firm shall perform all work in accordance with the Guaranteed Completion Dates as listed under Article 1.11, subject to adjustment as hereinafter provided.
- 4.1.4 The Firm shall secure all licenses, permits and governmental approvals necessary or required for the construction of the Project and the performance of the work. All fees associated with this procurement shall be the responsibility of the City.
- 4.1.5 The Firm shall provide all materials, equipment, supervision, inspection, testing, labor, tools and specialty items necessary to execute and complete the performance of the work unless otherwise specified as City's responsibility herein.
- 4.1.6 Notwithstanding any requirements herein for City's review, inspection or approval, the parties acknowledge and agree that the Firm shall be solely responsible and liable for the proper performance of the work as provided for herein.

- 4.1.7 Notices and Compliance with Law. The City is familiar with the zoning and land use restrictions applicable to the Project and has provided this information to the Firm. The Firm shall be responsible for giving all notices and for complying with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project with respect to the performance of the work and the construction of the Project including, without limitation, all building codes and regulations. The Guaranteed Maximum Price and Guaranteed Completion Dates are based upon the laws, ordinances and regulations, which are in effect on the date of this Agreement. Any changes in laws or codes thereafter that require additional work shall be the subject of a Change Order or Work Directive Change as hereinafter provided.
- 4.1.8 <u>Truth-In-Negotiation Certification</u>. The Firm certifies that the wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate, complete and current at the time of the execution of this Agreement of which this Certificate is a part. The original price and any additions thereto shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by which the City determines the Agreement amount was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs and that such original Agreement adjustments shall be made within one (1) year following the end of the Agreement.
- 4.1.9 <u>Utilities</u>. Based upon reasonable inquiries with the known utility providers in the area, the Firm shall locate all known existing utilities above, upon, or under the Project site. The Firm shall contact the owner of all known Utilities to determine the location of and necessity for relocating or temporarily interrupting any Utilities during the construction of the Project. The Firm shall schedule and coordinate its work around any such relocation or temporary service interruption. The Firm shall be responsible for properly shoring, supporting and protecting all Utilities at all times during the course of the work. Additional compensation may be due should existing utilities impacting the work be discovered, which are not identified by utility providers or shown on the Construction Documents.
- 4.1.10 Firm's Representative. The Firm designates Matthew Hester, Design-Build Program Manager, as its Representative whose address is 1263 12th Avenue East, Palmetto, Florida 34221to represent and act for the Firm (Firm Representative). All notices, determinations, instructions and other communications given to the Firm's Representative shall be binding upon the Firm. The City shall be entitled to rely upon the Firm's Representative authority as set forth within this Agreement.
- 4.1.11 Record Contract Documents. The Firm shall maintain at its primary local office one record set of the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, all drawings, specifications, addenda, amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives and Field Orders, as well as all written interpretations and clarifications issued by the City's Representative, in good order and annotated to show all changes made during construction. The record Contract Documents shall be continuously updated by the Firm throughout the prosecution of the work to accurately reflect all field changes that are made to adapt the work to field conditions, changes resulting from Change Orders, Work Change Directives and Field Orders, and all concealed and buried installations of piping, conduit and utility services which are installed by the Firm pursuant to the Contract Documents. A working copy of the Contract Documents and a permit set will be kept at the Project site. Upon completion of the work, the record Contract Documents, samples and shop drawings shall be delivered to the City's Representative by the Firm. In addition the Firm shall deliver to the City's Representative all warranties, maintenance manuals, training manuals and any other data related to the operation and maintenance of the facility in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- 4.1.12 <u>Emergencies</u>. In the event of an emergency affecting the safety or protection of persons or the work or property at the Project site or adjacent thereto, the Firm without special instruction or authorization from the City or the City's Representative, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. The Firm shall give the City's Representative prompt written notice after the occurrence of the emergency.
- 4.1.13 <u>Use of Premises</u>. The Firm shall confine all construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment and the operations of workers to the Project site and land and areas identified in and permitted by the Contract Documents and other lands and areas permitted by law, rights of way, permits and easements, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Project site with construction equipment or other material or equipment. The Firm shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof, or any land or areas contiguous thereto, resulting from the performance of the work. The Firm shall notify the City as soon as the Firm is aware that it may be necessary for the work to affect adjacent property, without limitation. It is the City's responsibility to obtain the consent of adjacent property owners for such work.
- 4.1.14 <u>Safety</u>. The Firm shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the work.
- 4.1.15 Project Meetings. The Firm shall at all times work closely with the City's Representative as designated herein and shall keep the City fully advised as to the status of the work on the Project. Prior to the commencement of Construction Phase Services, the Firm shall attend a preconstruction conference with the City and the City's Representative and others as appropriate to discuss the Project Schedule, procedures for handling shop drawings and other submittal, and for processing Applications for Payment, and to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the work. During the prosecution of the work, the Firm shall attend any and all meeting convened by the City or the City's Representative as directed by the City. The Firm may bring selected subcontractors and suppliers to such meetings when appropriate.
- 4.1.16 Sales Tax. With the exception of direct purchases by the City, all sales tax will be included in the compensation paid to the Firm by the City and shall be paid by the Firm.
- 4.1.17 <u>City Direct Purchase Plan</u>. Notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement to the contrary, the City may elect, at its sole and absolute discretion, to purchase materials and supplies for use in connection with the Project in accordance with the following procedure and provisions:
- (a) The Firm shall provide the City with a written list of vendors and materials which the Firm proposes that the City purchase directly pursuant to the terms hereof;
- (b) Upon review and approval of the list set forth in subsection (a) above by the City's Representative under Section 9.1, the City shall issue purchase orders for the materials on terms and to the vendors as set forth on said list;
- (c) The City's purchase order(s) issued pursuant to the terms hereof shall state that the purchase of the identified materials is exempt from the payment of any state tax, and shall include a copy of the City's Sales Tax Consumer's Certificate of Exemption;

- (d) In connection with any materials purchased by the City pursuant to the terms hereof, one or more deductive change orders to the Agreement shall be executed by the City and the Firm which deductive change order(s) shall be equal to the amount paid by the City for all materials purchased directly by the City. The applicable sales tax for these materials will become part of the City's Owner's Contingency pursuant to the terms hereof;
- (e) Said deductive change order(s) shall constitute amendment(s) to the Agreement recognizing that the City has purchased the materials identified in the deductive change order(s) directly from the vendor and such materials are not included as part of the Agreement and the GMP for the Project shall be adjusted by the amount of the deductive change order(s) without adjustment to the Design-Build Fee or General Conditions;
- (f) Invoices for materials purchased pursuant to the terms hereof shall be sent directly to the City and the City shall directly pay the vendor or material man providing such materials, and a copy of each invoice shall be provided to the Firm for review and concurrence of payment applicability;
- (g) Title to any materials purchased pursuant to the terms hereof shall vest in the City upon acceptance by the City and the Firm;
- (h) The City shall bear all risk of loss for any materials purchased pursuant to the terms hereof commencing upon issuance of the purchase order by the City and terminating when the materials are accepted at the project site by the City and the Firm. Upon delivery of such equipment and material at the project site and prior to unloading or removal of packaging material, the Firm shall inspect the shipment and acknowledge receipt and acceptability of such shipment in writing to the City and the Firm shall immediately assume responsibility for the protection, risk of loss, storage, security, installation, performance, cleaning and maintenance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Firm shall be further responsible to perform all work required to place each item of equipment in operating condition to the satisfaction of the City, including installation, coordinating the training, start-up and testing of the testing of the equipment as required under the terms of this Agreement;
- (i) The City shall obtain such insurance as the City deems reasonably prudent, at the City's sole cost and expense, to insure the City for the full replacement costs of any materials purchased by the City pursuant to the terns hereof until such materials are accepted at the project site by the City and the Firm;
- (j) The Firm shall remain responsible for the selection of vendors, the coordination of delivery dates, and the suitability of any materials for use in connection with the Project which are purchased pursuant to the terms hereof, during construction and for one year from the date of the Guaranteed Completion Date; provided, however, that the City shall remain responsible for payment to the applicable vendors;
- 4.1.18 Material Safety Data Sheet. If any chemicals, materials, or products containing toxic substances, as defined by Chapter 442, <u>Florida Statutes</u>, are contained in the products used on site or incorporated into the construction by the Firm or any of its subcontractors, the Firm shall provide to the City's Representative, a Material Safety Data Sheet at the time of each delivery or new use of a product.

- 4.1.19 <u>Assignment.</u> The Firm shall not assign, sublet or transfer any of the work except as otherwise provided for under the terms of this Agreement without the written consent of the City. Such consent does not release or relieve the Firm, as principal, from any of its obligations and liabilities under this Agreement.
- 4.1.20 The Firm shall comply with all laws, ordinances and regulations, Federal, State and City, applicable to the work.

If the Project involves E.P.A. Grant eligible work, the City and the Firm agree that the applicable provisions of 40 CFR, Part 35, including Appendix C-1, shall become a part of this Agreement.

If the Project involves work under other Federal or State Grantors or Approving Agencies, the City and the Firm shall review and approve the applicable required provisions or any other supplemental provisions as may be included in the Agreement.

The Firm shall assist the City in complying with all applicable terms and conditions of the government grants under Title XIII, Subchapter C, Part I of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (26 U.S.C. 1391, et seq.) and under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (PL 93-383), 24 CFR Part 570 et seq.

The Firm agrees to comply with the requirements of the Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act as amended, the provisions of Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.) and all other applicable Federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standard insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement.

- 4.1.21 The Firm shall not employ the services of any person or persons now in the employment of the City, or who are employed by the City during the term of this Agreement.
- 4.1.22 No person who is serving sentence in a penal or correctional institution shall be employed on work under this Agreement.
- 4.1.23 The Firm shall sign, as approved, any subcontracts submitted to the City and invoices submitted by subcontractors in connection with this Project under the terms of this Agreement.
- 4.1.24 The Firm warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Firm, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Firm, any fee, commission upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall have the right to annul this Agreement, without liability, or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.
- 4.1.25 Pursuant to Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, the following statement is incorporated into this Agreement and the Firm represents and warrants to the City that the Firm is not in violation of the following statutory provision: "A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of

real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, any may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list."

- 4.1.26 The Firm shall become familiar with and prepare for the normal weather conditions existing in Hillsborough County, Florida. Normal weather conditions are expected to impact the Work in numerous ways, including, but not limited to, delays during and after periods of rainfall, temporary flooding and ponding, wet ground, high winds and debris. The Firm's GMP and Construction Schedule, and any subsequent approved revisions thereto, shall sufficiently anticipate and include unfavorable weather.
- 4.1.27 Preservation of Property. The Firm shall preserve from damage all property along the line of the Work, or which is in the vicinity of or is in anywise affected by the Work, the removal or destruction of which is not called for by the Plans. This applies, but is not limited, to the public utilities, trees, lawn areas, building monuments, fences, pipe and underground structures, public streets (except natural wear and tear of streets resulting from legitimate use thereof by the Firm), and wherever such property is damaged due to the activities of the Firm, it shall be immediately restored to its original condition by the Firm and at his own expense. In case of failure on the part of the Firm to restore such property, or make good such damage or injury, the City may, upon forty-eight (48) hour written notice, proceed to repair, rebuild, or otherwise restore such property as may be deemed necessary, and the cost thereof will be deducted from any monies due or which may become due the Firm under this Agreement. Nothing in this clause shall prevent the Firm from receiving proper compensation for the removal, damage, or replacement of any public or private property not shown on the Plans, when this is made necessary by alteration of grade or alignment authorized by the City, provided that such property has not been damaged through fault of the Firm, his employees or agents.
- 4.1.28 <u>Boundaries</u>. The Firm shall confine his equipment, apparatus, the storage of materials, supplies and apparatus of his workmen to the limits indicated on the plans, by law, ordinances, permits or direction of the City.
- 4.1.29 Environmental Considerations. The Firm, in the performance of the work under this Firm, shall comply with all Local, State and Federal laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to protection of the environment; and, in the event he violates any of the provisions of same, he shall be answerable to the Local, State and Federal agencies designated by law to protect the environment. In the event the City receives, from any of the environmental agencies, a citation which is occasioned by an act or omission of the Contractor or his subcontractor or any officers, employees or agents of either, it is understood and agreed that the Firm shall automatically become a party-respondent under said citation; and the City immediately shall notify the Firm and provide him with a copy of said citation. The Firm shall comply with the requirements of the citation and correct the offending conditions(s) within the time stated in said citation and further shall be held fully responsible for all fines and/or penalties.
- 4.1.30 Working Hours. All work under this Agreement shall be performed during regular working hours, which are Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. No work shall be performed on official City holidays or during hours other than regular working hours without prior approval of the City.

#### ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION

- 5.1 Generally. The Firm's compensation for all work to be performed by the Firm under this Agreement shall consist of: (a) "Design-Build Fee" as described in Section 5.2 of this Agreement; and (b) the "Cost of Construction" as described in Section 5.4 of this Agreement which shall not exceed the "Guaranteed Maximum Price" for the construction of the Project as described in Section 5.3 hereof. If the City elects or is required under this Agreement to make changes in the design or construction of the Project as hereinafter provided, then any increase in the Design-Build Fee, the Guaranteed Maximum Price or the Cost of Construction caused by such a change shall be incorporated in the Change Order or Work Directive Change as hereinafter provided.
- 5.2 <u>DESIGN-BUILD Fee.</u> In consideration of the DESIGN-BUILD services rendered by the Firm in connection with the Construction Phase Services, the City agrees to pay the Firm a fee in the amount of Three Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty -Nine Dollars and Seventy-Three Cents (\$355,939.73), which fee shall be included as part of the GMP for the project as described in Sections 1.12 and 5.3 hereof.
- 5.3 <u>Guaranteed Maximum Price</u>. The Firm hereby guarantees that the Cost of Construction as described in Section 5.4 of this Agreement plus the Design-Build Fee shall not exceed the GMP established in the GMP Proposal.
- 5.3.1 To the extent that the Cost of Construction plus the Design-Build Fee is less than the GMP, the savings shall be shared as follows:

City = 50%

Firm = 50%

- 5.3.2 100% of any unused portions of monies designated in the GMP as "Owner's Contingency" and "Firm Contingency" shall be credited back to the City.
- 5.3.3 The City and the Firm agree that the allowances shown in the GMP Proposal are maximum amounts to be paid for each of these items.
- 5.3.4 Firm Contingency. The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include a contingency for the Firm's exclusive use (hereinafter the "Firm's Contingency") to cover those costs considered reimbursable as the Cost of Construction. The Firm Contingency shall be available for the Firm's exclusive use at any time, including at the time of final payment, for reimbursement of costs and expenses (1) reasonably incurred by Firm in performing the Work, (2) of a type that are reimbursable under this Agreement as a Cost of Construction, and (3) that are not otherwise the basis for a Change Order (it being understood that the Firm Contingency shall not be used to fund any Work which would otherwise be subject to a Change Order); including, by way of example but not limitation, (a) Work items inadvertently omitted during the estimating and bidding process, (b) schedule recovery costs associated with normal weather, (c) cost increases due to unanticipated local labor and material market conditions, (d) interfacing omissions between and from the various categories of Work; and (e) additional costs incurred due to the withdrawal or disqualification of a subcontractor bid forming the

basis for the GMP prior to signing of a written subcontract. Firm shall furnish the City with a monthly Contingency Log showing all reimbursements from the Firm Contingency. In no event may Firm use the Firm Contingency to reimburse itself for costs and expenses incurred as the result of the grossly negligent failure of Firm or its subcontractors to discharge their respective responsibilities with respect to the Work. Costs and expenses reimbursable from the Firm Contingency shall not exceed the amount of the Firm Contingency identified as an element of the Guaranteed Maximum Price set forth in the GMP Proposal, provided that the amount of the Firm Contingency shall be increased automatically by the net savings, if any, realized through subcontract and/or purchase order buyout or due to other under runs against the various amounts and allowances that compose the overall Guaranteed Maximum Price. When the Firm Contingency is exhausted, all costs and expenses that would qualify for reimbursement from the Firm Contingency shall be borne by the Firm unless such costs and expenses are otherwise compensable under the terms of this Agreement and do not cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded.

- 5.4 <u>Cost of Construction.</u> The term "Cost of Construction" shall mean all costs necessarily incurred by the Firm in the proper performance of the work required to complete the Construction Phase Services. The Cost of Construction shall not include any costs relating to the design of the Project or the Design-build Fee. The Cost of Construction shall include the following items:
- 5.4.1 Wages of all workers directly employed by the Firm to perform the work, either at or off the Project site.
- 5.4.2 The Firm will be paid a fixed amount for those General Conditions work items enumerated in the estimate.
- 5.4.3 Payments made by the Firm to subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of their respective subcontracts.
- 5.4.4. Payments made by the Firm to consultants retained by the Firm with respect to the Project, in accordance with the requirements of their respective consultant contracts.
- 5.4.5 Costs, including transportation, of materials and equipment incorporated in the Project.
- 5.4.6 Costs of materials described in the preceding Subsection 5.4.5 in excess of those actually installed but required to provide reasonable allowance for waste and for spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall be handed over to the City at the completion of the work or, at the City's option, shall be sold by the Firm; net amounts realized, if any, from such sales shall be credited to the City as a deduction from the Cost of the Construction.
- 5.4.7 Costs, including transportation, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools not customarily owned by the construction workers, which are provided by or for the Firm in the performance of the work required hereunder. Cost for items supplied by the Firm shall be documented or invoiced to the reasonable satisfaction of the City.
- 5.4.8 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools not customarily owned by the construction workers, which are provided by or for the Firm, whether rented

from the Firm or others, and costs of transportation, installation, repairs and replacements, dismantling and removal thereof specifically for the purpose of constructing the Project. Rates of equipment rented from the Firm shall be at actual costs paid, as evidenced by invoices to the Firm.

- 5.4.9 Cost of removal of debris from the site.
- 5.4.10 Reproduction costs.
- 5.4.11 That portion of the reasonable travel and subsistence expenses of the Firm's personnel incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the work outside the Tampa Metropolitan Area and with the City's prior consent.
- 5.4.12 That portion directly attributable to this Contract of premiums for insurance and bonds.
- 5.4.13 All sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority which are related to the Project.
- 5.4.14 Fees of testing laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents, except as specifically described in the Agreement or attachments to this Agreement.
- 5.4.15 Deposits lost for causes other than the Firm's negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to the City set forth in this Agreement.
- 5.4.16 Other costs incurred in the performance of the work if, and to the extent, approved in advance and in writing by the City.
- 5.4.17 In taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the safety of persons and property; or in repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming work executed by the Firm or the Firm's subcontractors consultants or suppliers, but only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered by the Firm from insurance, subcontractors, other consultants or suppliers.
- 5.4.18 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections which are required to construct the Project.
- 5.4.19 If, subsequent to final payment and at the City's request, the Firm incurs costs described in Section 5.4 and not excluded by Section 5.5 to correct defective or nonconforming work, the City shall reimburse the Firm such costs on the same basis as if such costs had been incurred prior to final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price.
  - 5.5 Costs Excluded. The Cost of Construction shall not include:
- 5.5.1 Expenses of the Firm's principal office and officers other than the site office except as specifically provided in Section 5.4.
- 5.5.2 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Section 5.4.

- 5.5.3 The Firm's capital expenses, including interest on the Firm's capital employed for the work.
  - 5.5.4 Threshold inspections.
- 5.5.5 Testing specifically excluded from and/or in addition to that included in the Firm's GMP Proposal.
- 5.6 <u>Cash Discounts.</u> Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Firm shall accrue to the City if (a) before making the payment, the Firm included them in an Application for Payment and received payment therefor from the City, or (b) the City has deposited funds with the Firm with which to make payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Firm. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the City and the Firm shall make provisions so that they can be secured. Amounts which accrue to the City in accordance with the provisions of this section shall be credited to the City as a deduction from the Cost of Construction.
- 5.7 Accounting Records. The Firm shall keep full and detailed accounts and exercise such controls as may be reasonably necessary for proper financial management under this Agreement. The City, City's accountants and state and federal governmental agencies (if applicable) shall be afforded reasonable access to the Firm's records, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Project, and the Firm shall preserve these for a minimum period of three (3) years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by law.

With respect to all matters covered by this Agreement, records will be made available for examination, audit, inspection, or copying purposes at any time during normal business hours at a location within Hillsborough County, Florida as often as the City, Grantor, representatives of the Comptroller General of the United States or other federal agency may reasonably require. The Firm will permit same to be examined and excerpts or transcriptions made or duplicated from such records, and audits made of all contracts, invoices, materials, records of personnel and of employment and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. The City's right of inspection and audit shall obtain likewise with reference to any audits made by any other agency, whether local, state or federal. The Firm shall retain all records and supporting documentation applicable to this Agreement for five (5) years from the date of submission of the annual performance report to Grantor. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, monitoring, inspection or other action has been started before the expiration of the required record retention period, records must be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or the end of the required period, whichever is later.

5.8 Project Funding. In accordance with applicable local, state and federal laws the City has awarded the Firm funding as detailed in EXHIBIT G. Funding does include multiple sources, and the corresponding grant agreement is attached herein as EXHIBIT G.

# ARTICLE 6 PAYMENT

6.1 Payment of Fee. Subject to the withholding requirements of this Agreement and the rights of the City hereunder, the Design-Build Fee shall be paid by the City to the Firm in accordance with the following schedule:

- 6.1.1 The Design-Build Fee shall be paid monthly during the Construction Phase in equal payments prorated over the period of construction. No retainage shall be held on the Design-Build Fee.
- 6.1.2 The Firm and the City agree and acknowledge that one tenth of a percent (0.1%) of the Design-Build Fee is paid by the City to the Firm as separate consideration for the indemnification of the City.
- 6.2 <u>Payment of the Cost of Construction.</u> Subject to the withholding requirements of this Agreement (excluding retainage) and the rights of the City hereunder, the City shall pay the Cost of Construction in the following manner and under the following conditions:
- 6.2.1 As a condition precedent to payment, the Firm shall furnish to the City such schedules of quantities and costs, progress schedules, reports, invoices, delivery tickets, estimates, records, or other data as the City may reasonably request concerning work performed or to be performed and the materials furnished under the Agreement.
- 6.2.2 The General Conditions Fee shall be paid in equal payments prorated over the period of construction and will be billed with each application for payment throughout the anticipated duration of the project. No retainage shall be held on the General Conditions Fee.
- 6.2.3 Subject to the City's retainage rights and other rights provided elsewhere, the Firm shall pay no later than the 5th business day following payment to the Firm, (a) for all transportation and utility services, (b) for all materials, tools, and equipment delivered at the site of the Project, (c) to each of its subcontractors, the respective amounts allowed the Firm on account of the work performed by its subcontractors, to the extent of each subcontractor's interest therein; and (d) all other costs of construction as described in Article 4 hereof for which payment has been received by the Firm. The Firm shall provide the City on a timely basis, but in no case more than 30 days, with proof of such payments and releases upon request by the City. Such proof shall accompany requests for partial payment as described in paragraph 6.2.4.
- 6.2.4 On or about the first of each month, the Firm shall make and certify an invoice, on forms approved by the City, for the work done, and may apply for partial payment therefor. The Firm shall revise the invoices as the City may reasonably direct. When satisfactory progress has been made and it has been shown that the Cost of Construction of the work completed since the last payment exceeds one percent (1%) of the total GMP, the City shall issue a certificate in the amount of the Cost of Construction it reasonably determines is due under the Contract Documents. The City shall then issue a voucher to the Firm in accordance with the following schedule:
- (a) In the amount of ninety-five percent (95%) of the Cost of Construction of the work completed as certified until construction complete.
- (b) If the Firm has performed satisfactorily and the work is substantially complete (operational or beneficial occupancy), the withheld amount shall be reduced, to an amount equal to 200% of the cost of completing the work required by this Agreement which cost shall be reasonably estimated by the City.

- (c) In addition to the Conditions set forth in Clauses (a) and (b). above, payments shall always be less any sums that may be retained or deducted by the City under the terms of any of the Agreement.
- (d) Payment on invoices submitted on or about the first of the month shall be paid on or about the 25th of the month.
- (e) The delivered cost of equipment and non-perishable materials suitably stored at the site of the Project (as well as those stored off-site in a bonded warehouse or such other location as may be required, and/or approved, by the City and only if expressly approved in writing by the City's Representatives) and tested for adequacy (excluding material testing) may be included by the Firm in its application for partial payment; provided, however, that the Firm shall furnish evidence satisfactory to the City that the Firm is the unconditional owner and in possession of such materials or equipment. Subject to the provisions noted above with respect to retainage reduction, the amount to be paid will be 95 percent of the invoice cost to the Firm which cost shall be supported by receipted bills. Such payment shall not relieve the Firm from full responsibility for the completion of the work and for protection of such materials and equipment until incorporated in the Project in a permanent manner as required by the Agreement.
- (f) Prior to payment to the Firm hereunder, the City may request and if requested, the Firm shall deliver to the City a written, verified statement on forms acceptable to the City showing in detail all amounts then due and unpaid by such Firm to all subcontractors, sub-consultants, laborers, workmen, and mechanics, employed by it under the Agreement for the performance of the Project, for daily or weekly wages, or to other persons for materials, equipment, or supplies delivered at the Project site during the period covered by the payment under consideration, including applicable lien releases.
- 6.2.5 The City may withhold from the Firm as much as any approved payments to it as may, in the reasonable opinion of the City, be necessary to secure: (a) claims of any persons supplying labor or materials to the Firm then due and unpaid; (b) loss due to defective work not remedied; or (c) liability, damage, or loss due to injury to persons or damages to the Project or property of other contractors, subcontractors, or others, caused by the act or neglect to act of the Firm or of any of its subcontractors. The City shall have the right, to apply any such amounts so withheld in such manner as the City may reasonably deem proper to satisfy such claims or to secure such protection. Such application of such money shall be deemed payments for the account of the Firm.
- 6.2.6 Upon determination of satisfactory completion of the work (or portion thereof) under this Agreement by the City, the Firm shall prepare the final invoice showing the total Cost of Construction of the completed work and submit it to the City for review. This invoice shall be prepared within 30 days after the date of substantial completion or as soon thereafter as the necessary measurements and computations can be made. All prior certificates and estimates, being approximate only, are subject to correction in the final invoice and payment.
- 6.2.7 When the final invoice (or a portion thereof) has been approved and certified by the City, it shall be promptly submitted to the Mayor and City Council. The final certificate shall state that the work has been completed and that the amount is based on the final invoice remaining due to the Firm. The City shall then accept the work as fully completed and shall, not later than 30 days after the final acceptance of the Project, pay the Firm the entire amount so found due thereunder after deduction of all previous payments and all percentages and amounts to be kept and retained under provisions of

this Agreement; provided, however, the City and Firm hereby agree that as a condition precedent to receiving final payment from the City, the Firm shall submit to the City: (a) a sworn affidavit executed by the Firm which contains a complete list of all unpaid bills for labor, services, materials, and subcontractors and any existing or pending suits relating to the Project (if any); and (b) a consent of surety that issued the Public Construction Bond for the Project. If a claim should remain unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Firm shall refund to the City all monies which the City may be compelled to pay in discharging such claim(s) including incidental costs and fees, including without limitation, attorneys' fees and costs whether incurred at trial or on appeal. The City shall not make any payments in discharging such claims, and shall not seek a refund for any such monies that the City may be compelled to pay, without providing to the Firm a reasonable opportunity to discharge such claims itself.

- 6.2.8 The acceptance by the Firm, or by anyone claiming by or through it, of the final payment shall operate as and shall be a release to the City and every officer and agent thereof from any and all claims and liability to the Firm for anything done or furnished in connection with the work or Project, except those expressly identified in writing by the Firm at the time it submits its final payment application to the City. No payment, however, final or otherwise, shall operate to release the Firm or its sureties from any obligations under this Agreement or a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond.
- 6.2.9 For clarification, the term, "final acceptance" shall mean acceptance of the work as evidenced by an official resolution of the City. Such acceptance shall be deemed to have taken place only if and when an approving resolution has been adopted by the City Council. The final acceptance shall be signed only after the City has assured itself by tests, inspection, or otherwise, that all of the provisions of the Agreement have been carried out to its satisfaction.

## ARTICLE 7 BOND

- 7.1 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Firm shall deliver to the City a fully executed Public Construction Bond, on the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in an amount equal to the GMP. The Public Construction Bond shall be issued by a surety acceptable to the City, whose acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld. The surety for such bond shall be duly authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and the bond shall be issued or countersigned by a local resident producing agent for such surety who is a resident of the State of Florida, regularly commissioned and licensed in said state: and satisfactory evidence of the authority of the person or persons executing such bond to execute the bond shall be submitted with the bond. The Public Construction Bond shall serve as security for the faithful performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance and guarantee provisions, and for the payment of all persons performing labor and furnishing materials in connection with the Agreement. The premiums for Public Construction Bond shall be reimbursable as Costs of the Construction. The surety company shall have a rating of not less than B+ Class VI as evaluated in the most recently circulated Best's Key Rating Guide Property-Liability. Pursuant to Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, the Firm shall record both the Public Construction Bond in the Public Records of Hillsborough County. Florida, before commencing any work under this Agreement on the Project.
- 7.2 If, during the term of this Agreement, the City shall become dissatisfied with the surety for the Public Construction Bond due to such surety's failure to maintain the minimum ranking noted in Section 7.1 above, the Firm shall, within fifteen (15) days after written notice from the City, obtain and submit a replacement bond from another surety reasonably acceptable to the City and meeting the requirements as set forth herein. The form of such replacement bond shall be identical to the bond

approved by the City as set forth in **Exhibit A** attached hereto and made a part hereof. Any such replacement bond shall be in an amount reasonably acceptable to the City, but in no event more than the bond it is replacing. All premiums associated with any such replacement bond shall be paid by the Firm and shall be recoverable as part of the Cost of Construction for which a change will be issued to adjust the GMP. The Firm shall not be entitled to any further progress payments under Article 6 until such replacement bond has been provided to the City. Any such replacement bond shall also be recorded in the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

7.3 In no event shall the Cost of Construction together with the Design-Build Fee exceed the GMP, except as adjusted by Change Orders.

# ARTICLE 8 THE FIRM'S REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

- 8.1 The Firm warrants to the City that materials and equipment furnished under this Agreement will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents, that the work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and that the work will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 8.2 Further, the Firm warrants the work against any defects in workmanship or materials for a period of one (1) year following the date of the Guaranteed Completion Date of the Project, or portion thereof, or for such longer periods of time as may be set forth with respect to certain warranties required by this Agreement. Under this warranty, the Firm hereby agrees to make good, without delay at its own expense, any failure of any part of the work due to faulty materials or manufacture, construction, or installation, or the failure of any equipment to perform in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, and further shall make good any damage to any part of the Project caused by such failure. In addition, all warranties in excess of one year, either as required by the Contract Documents or as otherwise provided, will be transferred to the City by the Firm.
- 8.3 The Firm shall secure required certificates of inspection, testing or approval and deliver them to the City.
- 8.4 The Firm shall assign all written equipment and vendor warranties and equipment manuals and deliver them to the City at the time of the Guaranteed Completion date.
- 8.5 The Firm shall direct the checkout of utilities and operations of systems and equipment for readiness, and assists in their initial start-up and testing.
- 8.6 The Firm agrees that the Public Construction Bond required hereunder shall fully cover all warranties contained herein and that all warranties, express or implied, inure to the benefit of the City and are enforceable by the City.
- 8.7 No Reliance. The Firm acknowledges, understands and agrees that the Project Construction Documents, and each component thereof, do not constitute technical specifications and do not in any way reflect all of the design, permitting, regulatory and construction requirements of the Project.

- 8.8 Assumption of Risks by Firm. The Firm has entered into this Agreement with the full understanding and knowledge that there is no guarantee that a Notice to Proceed will be issued by the City. The Firm agrees that the City shall not be liable for any damages associated with the City's withholding of the Notice to Proceed.
- 8.9 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Firm shall have a duty to anticipate and provide adequate contingencies for risks associated with the Work for the Project. The Firm shall take into consideration and factor into its Construction Schedule and GMP, all site conditions and difficulties involved in the completion of the Work, the variations in permitting time frames, and the time frames available to City for reviewing deliverables, schedules, and payment invoices.

# ARTICLE 9 THE CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE

- 9.1 <u>City's Representative</u>. The "City's Representative" for purposes of this Agreement shall be the Director of the Contract Administration Department whose address is 306 E. Jackson Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. The Director of the Contract Administration Department may designate other persons to carry out his duties hereunder. Such designations shall be in writing in accordance with Article 25 of this Agreement.
- 9.1.1 The Director of the Contract Administration Department or his representative, in addition to those matters elsewhere herein expressly made subject to his determination, direction, or approval, shall have the power, subject to such express provisions and limitations herein contained as are not in conflict herewith, and subject to review by the Mayor and City Council:
  - (a) To monitor the work provided for under this Agreement; and
- (b) To determine how the work of this Project shall be coordinated with the work of other contractors engaged simultaneously at this Project; and
- (c) To make minor changes in the work as he deems necessary, provided such changes do not result in an increase in the time or cost to the City or to the Firm.

The power of the City's Representative shall not be limited to the foregoing enumeration, for it is the intent of this Agreement that all of the work shall be subject to his determinations and approval, except where the determination or approval of someone other than the City's Representative is expressly called for herein and except as subject to review by the Mayor and City Council.

The City's Representative or his designee in addition to those matters previously stated shall also have the power:

- (a) To review any and all questions in relation to the Contract Documents (including this Agreement) and its performance, except as herein otherwise specifically provided; and his determination upon such review shall be final and conclusive upon the Firm, subject to the Firm's right to appeal any such determination in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article 16.
- (b) With the approval of the Mayor and City Council, to authorize modifications or changes in the Contract so as to require: (1) the performance of extra work, or (2) the omission of work whenever he deems it in the interest of the City to do so, or both.

- (c) To suspend the whole or any part of the work provided for under this Agreement whenever, in his judgment, such suspension is required: (a) in the interest of the City generally; or (b) to coordinate the work of the various contractors engaged on this Project, without compensation to the Firm for such suspension other than extending the time for the completion of the Project, as much as it may have been, in the opinion of the City, delayed by such suspension unless otherwise provided for herein. In the event the suspension is more than seven (7) days, the Firm will be entitled to said extension of time along with demobilization and remobilization expenses, and amounts due for materials ordered, only.
- (d) If, before the final acceptance of all the work contemplated herein, it shall be deemed necessary to take over, use, occupy, or operate any part of the completed or partly completed work, subject to receipt of approvals from all affected insurance companies for the City and the Firm, the Director of the Department shall have the right to do so; and the Firm shall not, in any way, interfere with or object to the use, occupation, or operation of such work by the City after receipt of notice in writing from the City that such work or part thereof will be used by the City on and after the date specified in such notice. Such taking over, use, occupancy or operation of any part of the completed or partially completed work shall not constitute final acceptance or approval of any such part of the work nor shall it constitute substantial completion of the work for purposes of this Agreement unless the requirements of Article 20 are otherwise satisfied. Nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of the Firm's right to an extension of time or an increase in its compensation hereunder if such early occupancy or use by the City interferes with or delays the Firm's work hereunder.
- 9.2 The City shall not, nor shall any department, officer, agent, or employee thereof, be bound, precluded, or stopped by any determination, decision, acceptance, return, certificate, or payment made or given under or in connection with the Contract by any officer, agent or employee of the City at any time either before or after final completion and acceptance of the work any payment thereof: (a) from showing the true and correct classification, amount, quality, or character of the work done or that any determination, decision, acceptance, return certificate or payment is untrue, incorrect or improperly made in any particular, or that the Project or any part thereof does not in fact conform to the requirements of the Contract, and (b) from demanding and recovering from the Firm any overpayments made to it or such damages as the City may sustain by reason of the Firm's failure to comply with the requirements of the Contract, or both.
- 9.3 Neither the inspection, nor any order, measurements or certificate of the City or its employees, officers, or agents, nor any order of the City for payment of money, nor payments for or acceptance of the whole or any part of the Project, nor any extension of time, nor any changes in the Contract, or any possession of the Project by the City shall operate as a waiver of any provisions of the Contract; nor shall any power herein provided nor any waiver of any breach of the Contract be held as a waiver of any other subsequent breach.

Any remedy provided in this Agreement shall be taken and construed as cumulative, namely, in addition to each and every other suit, action, or legal proceeding. Either party shall be entitled as a right to an injunction against any breach of the provisions of the Agreement.

9.4 <u>Payments</u>. The City shall make payments to the Firm in accordance with Article 6 herein.

- 9.5 Evidence of Funding. Prior to commencement of work by the Firm, the City shall deliver to the Firm a certified copy of a resolution adopted by City Council: (a) authorizing this Agreement or such amendments to this Agreement as may be required prior to commencement of Construction Services, and (b) identifying the funds for payment of the Design-Build Fee and the Costs of Construction.
- 9.6 <u>Material Testing</u>. The Firm shall furnish material testing, inspections and reports as required by law or the Contract Documents, the cost of which is included in the GMP, except the City shall provide density, asphalt and concrete testing. Provided, however, if any re-testing of a material is required due to such material failing the initial testing, such re-testing shall be at the Firm's expense, which expense may be included as part of the Cost of Construction.
- 9.7 <u>Budgeted Appropriations</u>. The City is subject to Section 166.241, Florida Statutes, and is not authorized to contract for expenditures in any fiscal year except in pursuance of budgeted appropriations. With respect to this Agreement, the City has budgeted and appropriated sufficient monies to fund the City's obligation under this Agreement, however, all funding under this Agreement for subsequent years is subject to the availability of funds, and payment of any and all funds pursuant to this Agreement shall be made solely for costs incurred for the Work.
- 9.8 <u>Notification of Faults or Defect</u>. If the City observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the work or nonconformity with the design or Contract Documents, the City shall give prompt written notice thereof to the Firm.
- 9.9 <u>Timely Provision of Information and Decisions</u>. The City shall furnish required information and services and shall promptly render decisions pertaining thereto to avoid delay in the orderly progress of the design and construction.
- 9.10 <u>Communication with Contractors</u>. The City shall communicate with the Firm's consultants and subcontractors only through the Firm.
- 9.11 <u>Legal Description and Land Survey</u>. Prior to commencement of the Construction Phase Services, the City shall provide the Firm with a survey of the Project site. The Firm shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of the survey.

#### 9.12 Hazardous Material.

- 9.12.1 A Hazardous Material is any substance or material identified now or in the future as hazardous under any federal, state or local law or regulation, or any other substance or material which may be considered hazardous or otherwise subject to statutory or regulatory requirements governing handling, disposal and/or clean-up. The Firm shall not be obligated to commence or continue work until any known or suspected Hazardous Material discovered at the Project site has been removed, rendered or determined to be harmless by the City as certified by an independent testing laboratory and approved by the appropriate government agency.
- 9.12.2 If after the commencement of the work, a known or suspected Hazardous Material is discovered at the Project site, the Firm shall be entitled to immediately stop work in the affected area and shall report the condition to the City and, if required, the government agency with jurisdiction.

- 9.12.3 The Firm shall not be required to perform any work relating to or in the area of known or suspected Hazardous Material without written mutual agreement of the Firm and the City.
- 9.12.4 The City shall be responsible for retaining an independent testing laboratory to determine the nature of the material encountered and whether it is a Hazardous Material requiring corrective measures and/or remedial action. Such measures shall be the sole responsibility of the City, and shall be performed in a manner minimizing any adverse effect upon the work of the Firm. The Firm shall resume work in the area affected by any Hazardous Material only upon written agreement between the parties after the Hazardous Material has been removed or rendered harmless.
- 9.12.5 If the Firm incurs additional costs and/or is delayed due to the presence of Hazardous Material, the Firm and the City agree to adjust the Contract time and/or compensation by a change order or amendment to this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 10 CONTRACT TIME

- 10.1 The period for performance shall be in accordance with Section 1.11.
- 10.2 The Firm must commence the Construction within thirty (30) days subsequent of the date of the Notice to Proceed by the City or receipt of Building Permit, whichever comes later, unless otherwise provided by the City. Time being of the essence of this Contract, the Firm shall thereafter prosecute the work diligently, using such means and methods as will secure its substantial completion not later than the Guaranteed Completion Date or on the dates to which Guaranteed Completion Date may be extended as provided herein.
- 10.3 Extension of Time. If such an application is made, the Firm shall be entitled to an extension of time for delay in completion of the services should the Firm be delayed in the commencement, prosecution of completion of any part of said services by any act or delay of the City, or by acts or omissions of other contractors on this Project, or by a riot, insurrection, war, pestilence, acts of public authorities, fire, lightning, hurricanes, earthquakes, tornadoes, floods, extremely abnormal and excessive inclement weather as indicated by the records of the local weather bureau for a five (5) year period preceding the date of the Agreement, or by strikes, or other causes, which causes of delay mentioned in this Agreement, in the reasonable opinion of the City, are beyond the expectation and control of the Firm.

The Firm shall, however, be entitled to an extension of time for such causes only for the number of days of delay which the City may reasonably determine to be due solely to the extent such causes and only to the extent that such occurrences actually delay the completion of the Project.

The determination made by the City on an application for the extension of time shall be subject to the Firm's right to dispute extensions of time granted by the City pursuant to Article 16 hereof.

Delays caused by failure of the Firm's material men, manufacturers, and dealers to furnish approved working drawing, materials, fixtures, equipment, appliances, or other fittings on time or failure of subcontractors to perform their services shall not constitute a basis of extension of time.

10.4 <u>Liquidated Damages</u>. It is mutually agreed between the parties that time is the essence of this Agreement and that there will be on the part of the City considerable monetary damage in the event

the Firm should fail to achieve Substantial Completion of the work by the Guaranteed Completion Date, as said date may be adjusted pursuant to the terms hereof. In such event, the amount of liquidated damages per day shall be \$500/day. This amount shall, in no event, be considered as a penalty or otherwise than as the liquidated and adjusted damages to the City because of the delay; and the Firm and its Surety agree that the stated sum per day for each such day of delay shall be deducted and retained out of the monies which may become due hereunder and, if not so deductible, the Firm and its Surety shall be liable therefor.

# ARTICLE 11 CHANGES IN THE WORK

- 11.1 General. The City shall have the right at any time during the progress of the work to increase or decrease the scope of work. Upon being notified of a change, the Firm shall submit to the City within fifteen (15) calendar days an itemized estimate of any costs and/or time of performance increases or savings it foresees as the result of the requested change.
- Change Orders/Written Directive Change. A "Change Order", or "Work Directive Change" to this Agreement, shall be issued and executed promptly after an agreement is reached between the Firm and the City concerning the requested change. The Firm shall promptly perform changes authorized by a duly executed Change Order or Work Directive Change. The Contract time and compensation shall be adjusted in the Change Order or Work Directive Change in the manner as the City and the Firm shall mutually agree. If the City and the Firm are unable to mutually agree on the adjustment to the Contract time and/or compensation, it shall be adjusted pursuant to the procedures contained in Sections 11.3, 11.4 and 11.5 below.
- 11.3 Additional Fee & General Condition Cost. The firm shall be allowed a mark-up on all changes in the scope of the work. This mark-up shall include a cost of 12% for additional General Condition cost, which shall include all related insurance and bond costs, and a Fee not to exceed the percentage rate of the Design-Build Fee indicated in Article 5.2 as divided by the GMP as indicated in Article 1.11.
- 11.4 <u>Disagreement as to Change Orders or Work Change Directive</u>. If the City and the Firm are unable to agree on a Change Order or Work Directive Change for the requested change, the Firm shall, nevertheless, promptly perform the change as directed by the City.
- 11.5 Computation of Changes to GMP. In the event the City and the Firm are unable to mutually agree on a change to the Contract time and/or compensation resulting from a change, the amount of the adjustment shall be as reasonably directed by the City. The City shall issue a Change Order or Work Directive Change based upon such determination and the Firm shall be entitled to payment in at least the amount so determined by the City. If the Firm disagrees with the City's adjustment determination, the Firm may make a claim for the difference pursuant to the procedures set forth in Article 16.
- 11.6 <u>Verification of the Firm's Costs</u>. The City shall have the right to conduct a review of the Firm's books and records to verify the accuracy of any claim submitted to the City by the Firm with respect to any Change Order or Work Directive Change.
- 11.7 Minor Changes in Work. The City's Representative shall have authority to order minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment to the Contract compensation and/or time and not

inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such changes may be effected by "Field Order" or by other written order. Such changes shall be binding upon the Firm.

- 11.8 Concealed Conditions. If concealed or unknown conditions (including, without limitation, Hazardous Materials), that affect the performance of the work and vary from those indicated in plans, drawings, surveys, reports or any other documents provided by the City, are encountered below ground or in an existing structure other than the work, which conditions are not ordinarily found to exist or which differ materially from those generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Project, notice by the observing party shall be given promptly to the other party and, if possible, before conditions are disturbed. The Contract time and/or compensation shall be equitably adjusted for such concealed or unknown conditions by Change Order or Work Directive Change. It shall be the obligation of the Firm to fully investigate the Project site and provide sufficient contingency amounts for Project site conditions which are foreseeable and which may differ from those suggested by inspections, reports or other information provided by the City.
- 11.9 <u>Disputed Work.</u> If the Firm is of the opinion that any services required, necessitated, or ordered violates the terms and provisions of the Agreement, it must promptly notify the City, in writing, of its contentions with respect thereto and request a final determination thereof. If the City determines that the service in question is a service covered in the Agreement and not an extra service or that the service complained of is proper and that no adjustment in the Contract time or compensation is required, it shall direct the Firm to proceed, and the Firm shall promptly comply. In order, however, to reserve its right to claim compensation or time for such service, the Firm must within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving notice of the City's determination and direction, notify the City in writing that the service is being performed or that the determination and direction is being complied with under protest. Failure of the Firm to notify shall be deemed as a waiver of claim for extra compensation and time.

# ARTICLE 12 INSPECTION/MONITORING/TESTING

- 12.1 The City's Access to Work. The City and its respective representatives, agents and employees, and governmental agencies with jurisdiction over the Project (including, without limitation, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the U.S. Department of Labor) shall have reasonable access at all times to the work contemplated in the Contract Document, whether the work is being performed on or off Project site, for their observation, inspection and testing. The Firm shall provide reasonably safe conditions for such access. The Firm shall provide the City with timely notice of readiness of the work for all required inspections, tests or approvals.
- Responsibility for Inspections, Tests or Approvals. If the Contract Documents, or any codes, laws, ordinances, rules or regulations of any public authority having jurisdiction over the Project require any portion of the work to be specifically inspected, tested or approved, such inspection, testing and approval shall constitute a condition precedent to the right of the Firm to receive the money therefore until the work has been inspected, tested or approved. The Firm shall cooperate with and assist the City in securing the required certificates of inspection, testing or approval. All inspections, tests or approvals coordinated by the Firm shall be performed in a manner and by organizations engaged by the Firm and reasonably acceptable to the City. The City is solely responsible for all threshold inspections.

- 12.3 Covered Work. If any work that is to be inspected, tested or approved is covered without concurrence from the City, such work must, if requested by the City, be uncovered for observation. Such uncovering shall be at the Firm's expense unless the Firm has given the City timely notice of the Firm's intention to cover same and the City has not acted with reasonable promptness to respond to such notice. If any work is covered contrary to written directions from the City, such work must, if required by the City, be uncovered for the City's observation and be replaced at the Firm's sole expense.
- 12.4 <u>Inspecting Covered Work.</u> If the City considers it necessary or advisable that any covered work performed by the Firm be observed by the City or inspected or tested by others, the Firm, at the written request of the City, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or tests, as the City may reasonably require, that portion of the work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment. If it is found that such work is defective, the Firm shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, correction of the defect and of satisfactory reconstruction thereof. If, however, such work is not found to be defective, the Contract time and compensation shall be adjusted by Change Order or Work Directive Change as appropriate due to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction.

# ARTICLE 13 DEFECTIVE WORK

Any Work performed by the Firm not conforming to the requirements of the Contract Documents shall be deemed defective work. If required by the City, the Firm shall as directed by the City, either correct all defective work whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the defective work has been rejected by the City, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective work, without increase to the GMP.

# ARTICLE 14 PROTECTION

- 14.1 During performance and until substantial completion, the Firm shall be under an absolute obligation to protect the finished and unfinished Project against any damage, loss, or injury. The Firm shall take proper precaution to protect the finished portion of the Project from loss or damage, pending substantial completion of all the work included in the entire Agreement. Such loss or damage shall be at the risk of and borne by the Firm, whether arising from acts or omissions of the Firm or others, excluding the acts or omissions of the City and anyone for whom the City is liable. In the event of any such loss or damage, the Firm shall forthwith repair, replace, and make good the Work without extension of time therefore, except as may be otherwise provided herein.
- 14.2 The provisions of this section shall not be deemed to create any new right of action in favor of third parties against the Firm or the City.

## ARTICLE 15 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

During the performance of this Agreement or any related Work Order, the Firm shall:

15.1 Not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, age, sex, handicap, or national origin. The Firm shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, age, sex, handicap, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited

to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Firm shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment; notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

15.2 In all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Firm, it must state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, age, sex, handicap, or national origin.

# ARTICLE 16 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

- 16.1 The City and the Firm shall attempt to mutually resolve any claims or disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement and the performance of the work hereunder. All claims or disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement or the performance of work hereunder must be made in writing by the complaining party within the time frame established in this Agreement for such claims or disputes, and delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of this Agreement. If no such time frame is established in this Agreement, notice from the complaining party shall be made in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of the first occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim or dispute. If either party fails to give written notice of a claim or dispute as required herein, such party shall be deemed to have waived the claim or dispute; provided, however, if the claim or dispute is of a continuing nature and written notice is given while the claim or disputed matter is still occurring but after the time period required in this Agreement, the party shall be deemed to have waived the claim or dispute only as to those matters which accrued prior to the date such written notice is actually given.
- 16.2 In the event that any dispute or claim arising out of or related to this Agreement or the performance of work hereunder cannot be amicably resolved by the parties, then such dispute(s) shall be subject to litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction; provided, however, the parties may, by mutual written agreement, first submit such dispute(s) to non-binding mediation or other mutually agreed upon dispute resolution procedures.
- 16.3 In connection with any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement or any work performed hereunder, the venue for such litigation shall be Hillsborough County, Florida. Further, the prevailing party in any such litigation shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party the prevailing party's reasonable attorney's fees and costs, including those incurred on appeal.
- 16.4 In the event of any conflicts between this Agreement and any Attachment incorporated herein by reference, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

# ARTICLE 17 <u>CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT</u>

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may be cancelled by either party for convenience in accordance with the provisions in 24 CFR § 85.44. Either party will be required to provide thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other at its address as herein specified. Either party will be required to provide thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other at its address as herein specified. In the event the Agreement is cancelled, the Firm, shall deliver all original sketches, tracings, drawings, computations, details, design calculations, specifications and other documents and plans that result from the Firm's services under this Agreement. The aforementioned original sketches, tracings, drawings, computations, details, design calculations, specifications and other documents and plans shall be

without restriction on future use by the City. In the event either party cancels this Agreement pursuant to this Article 17, the Firm shall recover from the City payment for Work executed prior to such cancellation, costs incurred to terminate/cancel subcontracts, demobilization costs and costs incurred to render incomplete Work safe.

## ARTICLE 18 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

- 18.1 It is mutually agreed that the following shall constitute a default by the Firm under this Contract, subject to the notice and cure provisions herein:
- (a) In accordance with 24 CFR 85.43, a default shall consist of any use of Grant Funds for a purpose other than as authorized by this Agreement, compliance with any provision in all Articles herein, any material breach of the Agreement, failure to comply with the audit requirements as provided herein, or failure to expend Grant Funds in a timely or proper manner.
- (b) If the Firm fails to begin the Construction Phase Services within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Notice to Proceed; or
- (c) If at any time during the progress of the work, the Firm is not prosecuting the work with reasonable speed, or is delaying the work unreasonably and unnecessarily; or
- (d) If the force of workmen or quality or quantity of material furnished is not sufficient to insure completion of the Project within the Contract time and in accordance with the Contract Documents; or
- (e) If the Firm shall wrongfully fail to make prompt payments for materials or labor to subcontractors for work performed; or
- (f) If legal proceedings have been instituted against the Firm by others than the City in such manner as to interfere with the progress of the work provided for in the Contract Documents and which may subject the City to peril of litigation or outside claims; or
  - (g) If a receiver or trustee shall be appointed for the Firm or the Firm's property; or
- (h) If the Contract or any right, monies, or claim there under shall be assigned by the Firm, otherwise than as herein specified; or
- (i) If the Firm shall materially fail in any manner of substance to observe the provisions of this Agreement; or
- (j) If any of the work, machinery, or equipment shall be defective, and shall not be replaced as herein provided; or
  - (k) If the Project shall be abandoned by the Firm prior to substantial completion; or
- If the Firm shall be adjudged a bankrupt or make an assignment for the benefit of creditors.
  - 18.2 Termination by the City.

- 18.2.1 If the Firm commits a default as set forth in Section 18.1 or persistently fails or neglects to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the City may terminate this Agreement, as provided for in subparagraph 18.2.2.
- 18.2.2 The City shall notify the Firm in writing of the Firm's default(s). If the City reasonably determines that the Firm has not remedied or cured the default(s) within seven (7) calendar days following receipt by the Firm of said written notice, or in the event the default is not monetary and cannot be remedied within said seven (7) day period that the Firm has not commenced the cure and is not diligently proceeding to complete the cure within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of written notice by the Firm, then the City may then give a second written notice and thereafter the City may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy it may be entitled to hereunder or by law, terminate the Firm's right to proceed under the Agreement, and take possession of the Work and any materials, tools, equipment, and appliances of the Firm, take assignments of any of the Firm's subcontracts and purchase orders, and complete the work or have the work completed by other third parties other than the City. In addition, the City shall retain all rights and remedies at law or in equity related to the default of the Firm.

# 18.3 Termination by the Firm

Agreement, through no fault of the Firm or any of its subcontractors, consultants, sub-contractors, sub-consultants, agents or employees or any other person performing any of the Work under a contract with the Firm, or the City otherwise materially breaches this Agreement, the Firm shall give written notice to the City of the Firm's intention to terminate this Agreement. If the City fails to make such payment within seven (7) calendar days after its receipt of such notice, or the City otherwise fails to cure its breach within the said seven (7) calendar day period, or in the event the default is not monetary and cannot be remedied within said seven (7) day period that the City has not commenced the cure and is not diligently proceeding to complete the cure within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of written notice by the City, then the Firm may stop the work and may give a second written notice of its decision to terminate to the City and thereafter the Firm may, without prejudice to any other remedy, terminate this Agreement and recover from the City payment for work executed and for proven loss with respect to materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, including reasonable overhead, loss profit and damages.

18.3.2 The Firm may terminate this Agreement if the work is stopped for: (a) a period of sixty (60) calendar days through no fault of the Firm or a subcontractor, consultant, sub-subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons performing portions of the work under a contract with the Firm, and if the stoppage of work is due to the issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction, an act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency making material unavailable; (b) repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions by the City constituting in aggregate of more than 90 calendar days in any 365 calendar day period; or (c) the City has failed to furnish to the Firm evidence of funding as required by Section 9.5 hereof. If one of the preceding reasons exists, the Firm may, upon seven (7) calendar days written notice to the City, terminate this Agreement and recover from the City payment for work executed and for proven loss with respect to materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, including reasonable overhead, loss profit and damages.

18.3.3 In the event the project is terminated for cause pursuant to this Article, the Firm, shall deliver all original sketches, tracings, drawings, computations, details, design calculations, specifications and other documents and plans that result from the Firm's services under this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 19 AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

- 19.1 In the event, that during the period of this Agreement, the Firm expends more than \$750,000 in federal funds in an operating year from this and other federal grants, the Firm shall, at its own cost and expense, cause to be carried out an independent audit. The audit shall be completed and a copy furnished to the City, within the earlier of thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s) or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the City. For purposes of this Agreement, an operating and/or audit year is the equivalent to the Firm's fiscal year. The determination of when Grant Funds are expended is based on when the activity related to the expenditure occurs.
- 19.2 The audit shall be conducted in compliance with the Office of Management and Budget: Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, as applicable, which are made a part of this Agreement by reference thereto. In the event the audit shows that the entire funds disbursed hereunder, or any portion thereof, were not expended in accordance with the conditions of this Agreement, the Firm shall be held liable for reimbursement to the City of all funds not expended in accordance with these applicable regulations and Agreement provisions within thirty (30) calendar days after the City has notified the Firm of such non-compliance. Said reimbursement shall not preclude the City from taking any other action as provided herein.
- 19.3 If expenditure does not exceed \$750,000 during an operating year, the Firm shall provide the City with its annual financial statement within ninety (90) days of the end of its operating year. Said financial statement shall be prepared by an actively licensed certified public accountant.
- 19.4 <u>STATE SINGLE AUDIT</u>: Each nonstate entity shall comply with all applicable requirements of section 215.97, F.S., and Audit Requirements. A State single audit is required if an nonstate entity expends \$750,000 or more of State financial assistance in any fiscal year of such nonstate entity in accordance with the requirements of the *Florida Single Audit Act*.

# ARTICLE 20 COMPLETION AND INSPECTION

20.1 Substantial Completion. The work shall be substantially completed when the City's Representative determines that the work is substantially complete and can be utilized by the City for its intended use or the City takes occupancy of the Project, excluding that provided for in Section 9.1.1(d) of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. When Substantial Completion of the work has been achieved, the City's Representative and the Firm shall make an inspection of the work within seven (7) calendar days to determine the extent of completion. If the City's Representative considers the work substantially complete, the City's Representative will prepare and deliver to the Firm a "Punch List" of items to be completed or corrected by the Firm before final payment. The City shall have the right to exclude the Firm from the site after the date of Substantial Completion, but the City shall allow the Firm reasonable access to complete or correct items on the Punch List.

- 20.2 <u>Final Progress Payment</u>. At the date of Substantial Completion, the Firm may apply for and the City, if the Firm has satisfied the requirements of Section 20.1 and any other requirements of the Contract Documents relating to retainage, shall pay the Firm the amount retained, less 200% of the reasonable values on the Punch List. Final payment of such withheld sums shall be made upon correction or completion of such Work.
- 20.3 Final Inspection and Acceptance. Upon receipt by the City of written notice from the Firm that the work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a Final Application for Payment, the City's Representative will promptly make such inspection and, if it finds the work acceptable and fully performed in compliance with the Contract Documents, the City will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment, stating that, on the basis of its observations and inspections, the work has been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be owed the Firm is due and payable. Neither the final payment nor the retainage shall become due and payable until the Firm submits: (1) the Final Release and Affidavit in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and (2) Consent of Surety to final payment.

# ARTICLE 21 OTHER WORK

- 21.1 General. The City may perform other work related to the Project at the site by the City's own forces, have other work performed by utility owners or let other direct contracts. If the Firm believes that such performance will involve additional expense to the Firm or require additional time, the Firm shall notify the City for an adjustment to the Contract time and/or compensation as appropriate.
- 21.2 Access to Site. The Firm shall afford each utility owner and other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract with the City (or the City, if the City is performing the additional work with the City's employees) safe access to the site and a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such work and shall connect and coordinate its work with theirs. The Firm shall do all cutting, fitting and patching of the work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with such other work. If this requirement creates additional work, the Firm shall seek an adjustment to the Contract time and/or compensation in accordance with Section 21.1 above. The Firm shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter their work with the written consent of the City's Representative and others whose work will be affected.

# ARTICLE 22 <u>DOCUMENT OWNERSHIP</u>

- 22.1 General. All drawings, specifications and other documents furnished by the Firm thereafter shall become the property of the City upon receipt of payment by the Firm from the City for same. Drawings, specifications and other documents furnished by the Firm shall not be used by the City for the construction of other projects, or for additions to this Project, except by written agreement with the Firm relating to use, liability and compensation; provided, however, nothing herein shall require the City to obtain the Firm's prior consent to copy portions of any of the Project documents for illustrative purposes on other projects.
- 22.2 <u>Record Copy</u>. The Firm will keep one record copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, modifications and shop drawings at the site, or in its primary local office, in good order and annotated to show all changes made during the construction process. These shall be available to the City's

Representative and shall be delivered to the City's Representative for the City upon completion of the work.

#### ARTICLE 23 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

- 23.1 General. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors, assigns, and legal representatives of the City and the Firm. Neither party shall assign any interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior, express, written consent of the other party.
  - 23.2 <u>Survival</u>. This Article shall survive completion or termination of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 24 INSURANCE

- 24.1 The Firm, at its own cost and expense, shall effect and maintain at all times during the life of this Agreement the insurance set out in Exhibit F.
- 24.2 Before commencing the performance of the services, the Firm shall cause to be delivered to the City good and sufficient certificate of insurance executed by the insurers certifying that the coverage required by this Article area in force and stating that thirty (30) calendar days written notice will be given the City: Contract Administration Department 306 E. Jackson Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor North Tampa, FL 33602.
- 24.3 Prior to any changes or cancellation in such coverage; and, if and when requested by the City, the Firm shall exhibit the original policy to the City for examination.
- 24.4 If applicable, Firm shall furnish a Contractor Controlled Insurance Program ("CCIP") providing for General Liability, Worker's Compensation and Excess/Umbrella coverage for the liability insurance required by Exhibit F. The CCIP shall only cover and apply to on-site exposures for participants enrolled in the CCIP. Firm shall be compensated for CCIP at the rate specified in Section 5.4.3 of the Agreement. The CCIP Manual setting forth the procedures, protocols and other details pertaining to the administration of the CCIP program is incorporated into the Agreement.

# ARTICLE 25 NOTICES

Any notice or demand required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be given either (i) by mailing same by United States mail with proper postage affixed thereto, certified, return receipt requested, or (ii) by sending same by Federal Express, Express Mail, Airborne, Emery, Purolator or other expedited mail or package delivery, or (iii) by hand delivery to the appropriate address as herein provided. Notices required hereunder shall be directed to the following addresses:

If to City: City of Tampa

Contract Administration Department 306 E. Jackson St.

Tampa, Florida 33602

Attn: Michael W. Chucran, Director

With a copy to: City of Tampa

Office of the City Attorney 315 E. Kennedy Boulevard Tampa, Florida 33602

Attn: City Attorney

If to the Firm: Westra Construction Corp.

1263 12<sup>th</sup> Avenue East Palmetto, Florida 34221

Attn: Matthew Hester, Design-Build Program Manager

or to such other address as either party may designate by proper notice given in accordance with this Article.

# ARTICLE 26 GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Any litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement brought by any party hereto, shall be prosecuted solely and exclusively in the appropriate Florida state court in Hillsborough County, Florida.

# ARTICLE 27 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the sole understanding of the City and the Firm and supersedes all prior agreements and negotiations between the parties. No modification, alteration or waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding unless the same shall be in writing, dated subsequent to the date of this Agreement and

duly executed by the party or parties intended to be bound by it.

## ARTICLE 28 SEVERABILITY

Should any provision of this Agreement be determined by a court to be unenforceable, such a determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other section or part thereof.

## ARTICLE 29 NONDISCRIMINATION/EEO/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

- 29.1 During the term of this Agreement, the Firm, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, certifies as follows:
- 29.1.1 There shall be no discrimination against any person who is employed in the work, or against any applicant for such employment, because of race, sex, religion, age, handicap, color or national origin. This provision shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; lay-off or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and, selection for training, including apprenticeship. In the case of any subcontracting of the work, the Firm shall insert the preceding two sentences in its agreements with subcontractors.

- 29.1.2 In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Firm for subcontractors, procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor, supplier or lessor shall be notified by the Firm of the Firm's obligations herein and under the ordinances and regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, age, religion, sex, handicap or national origin.
- 29.2 The Firm shall comply with the City's Equal Business Opportunity Program as set forth in Exhibit C.

# ARTICLE 30 EQUAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

- 30.1 See Exhibit C for Tampa's Equal Business Opportunity Program Procedures.
- 30.2 The FIRM shall demonstrate good faith effort toward the utilization of City of Tampa Certified Women/Minority Business subcontractors, subconsultants or suppliers.
  - 30.3 The CITY shall make available a list of Certified Women/Minority Enterprises.
- 30.4 The FIRM shall report to the CITY its subcontractors/subconsultants/suppliers solicited or utilized as required by Exhibit C.
- 30.5 At the time of the submission of invoices, the FIRM shall submit to the CITY a report (Exhibit C) of all subcontractors, subconsultants or suppliers utilized with their final contract amounts and any other reports or forms as may be required by the CITY.

## ARTICLE 31 ETHICS

- 31.1 In connection with this Agreement, the Firm hereby covenants and agrees that it shall comply with all applicable governmental laws, Florida statutes, rules and regulations including, without limitation, the City of Tampa's Code of Ethics. Pursuant to Section 2-522 of the City of Tampa Code, the Firm acknowledges that if it fails to comply with the City of Tampa's Code of Ethics, such a failure shall render this Agreement voidable by the City and subject the contracting party to debarment from any future City contracts or agreement.
- 31.2 The Firm shall disclose any clients that may either conflict with or affect its independent judgment when performing any work for the City of Tampa covered by this Agreement. Failure of the Firm to disclose the above professional conflict of interest may result in termination of this Agreement and may require the return of all payments, if any, made to the Firm from the City. If, in its sole discretion the City of Tampa determines that a professional conflict of interest is deemed to exist, the Firm shall be disqualified from participating in the proposed project.

#### 31.3 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION.

Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, prohibits agencies or local governmental entities from contracting for goods or services of any amount with companies that are on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or are engaged in a boycott of Israel, and of \$1 million or more with companies that are on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. Specifically, Section 287.135(2), Florida Statutes, states: "A company is ineligible to, and may

not, bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local governmental entity for goods or services of: (a) Any amount if, at the time of bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing such contract, the company is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to s. 215.4725, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; or (b) One million dollars or more if, at the time of bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing such contract, the company: 1. Is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to s. 215.473; or 2. Is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria."

Upon submitting its bid or proposal, a bidder/proposer: (i) certifies the company is not in violation of Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and shall not be in violation at the time the company enters into or renews any resulting contract; and (ii) agrees any such resulting contract shall be deemed to contain a provision that allows the City, at its option, to terminate such contract for cause if the company is found to have submitted a false certification, been placed on one or any of the foregoing Lists, been engaged in a boycott of Israel, or been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

# ARTICLE 32 NO WAIVER OF RIGHTS

- 32.1 Neither the inspection, nor any order, measurements or certificate of the City or its employees, officers, or agents, nor by any order of the City for payment of money, nor any money, nor payments for or acceptance of the whole or any part of the work by the City, nor any extension of time, nor any changes in the Agreement, Specifications or Plans, nor any possession by the City or its employees shall operate as a waiver of any provisions of this Agreement, nor any power herein provided nor shall any waiver of any breach of this Agreement be held as a waiver of any other subsequent breach.
- 32.2 Any remedy provided in this Agreement shall be taken and construed as cumulative, namely, in addition to each and every other suit, action, or legal proceeding. The City shall be entitled as of right to an injunction against any breach of the provisions of this Agreement.

## ARTICLE 33 NO ESTOPPEL

The City shall not, nor shall any department, officer, agent, or employee thereof, be bound, precluded, or estopped by any determination, decision, acceptance, return, certificate, or payment made or given under or in connection with this Agreement by any officer, agent or employee of the City at any time either before or after final completion and acceptance of the work and payment therefore: (a) from showing the true and correct classification, amount, quality, or character of the work done, or that any determination, decision, acceptance, return certificate or payment is untrue, incorrect or improperly made in any particular, or that the work or any part thereof does not in fact conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, and (b) from demanding and recovering from the Agreement any overpayments made to him or such damages as it may sustain by reason his failure to comply with the requirements of the Contract of Documents, or both.

# ARTICLE 34 EXHIBITS INCORPORATED

The following documents are expressly agreed to be incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement:

Exhibit A - Public Construction Bond

Exhibit B - Final Release and Affidavit

- Exhibit C City's Equal Business Opportunity Program
- Exhibit D Project Construction Documents as prepared by Westra Construction Corp. (A Record Set is on file with the Contract Administration Department.)
- Exhibit E Westra Construction Corp.'s GMP PROPOSAL dated March 15, 2021 consisting of the Firm's Cover Letter, Project Narrative, GMP Pricing Schedule of Values, List of Allowances, List of Documents, Qualifications, Assumptions, and Clarifications, Construction Schedule.

Exhibit F - Insurance

Exhibit G - Notification of Funding Sources

# ARTICLE 35 MISCELLANEOUS

- 35.1 <u>Article Headings.</u> Article headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and shall not be considered to be part of this Agreement or used in its interpretation.
- 35.2 No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create or constitute a joint venture or partnership between the Firm and the City with respect to the Project or this Agreement.
- 35.3 <u>Time of Essence</u>. Time is of the essence for both parties hereto with respect to their performance hereunder.
- 35.4 <u>Standard or Codes</u>. The Firm shall comply with all applicable local, State and Federal laws, rules, ordinances and regulations relative to the work, and shall obtain all permits, licenses or other authorization necessary for the prosecution of the work provided for herein.
- 35.5 Construction. Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise clearly requires, references to the plural include the singular, references to the singular include the plural, the term "including" is not limiting and the terms "hereof", "herein", "hereunder" and similar terms in this Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement unless stated otherwise. Additionally, the parties hereto acknowledge that they have carefully reviewed this Agreement and have been advised by counsel of their choosing with respect thereto, and that they understand its contents and agree that this Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against any party hereto, regardless of who is responsible for its preparation.
- 35.6 Records. The Firm shall keep and preserve all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to the Cost of Construction and shall make such materials available at its Tampa office at reasonable times during the term of the Agreement and for three (3) years from the date of final payment hereunder or such longer period of time as may be required by applicable law, for inspection by the City and any authorized representative of the United States Federal Government; and copies thereof shall be furnished by the Firm if requested, at the City's expense.

# 35.7 Public Records; Data Collection and Access

- A. <u>Exempt Plans.</u> Firm pursuant to this Agreement (and as part of the solicitation process that resulted in award of this Agreement) may hold, come into possession of, and/or generate certain building plans, blueprints, schematic drawings, including draft, preliminary, and final formats, which depict the internal layout and structural elements of a building, facility, or other structure owned or operated by the City or an agency (singularly or collectively "Exempt Plans"), which pursuant to Section 119.071(3), Florida Statutes, are exempt from Section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes and Section 24(a), Art. I of the Florida State Constitution. Firm certifies it has read and is familiar the exemptions and obligations of Section 119.071(3), Florida Statutes; further that Firm is and shall remain in compliance with same, including without limitation maintaining the exempt status of such Exempt Plans, for so long as any Exempt Plans are held by or otherwise in its possession. This section shall survive the expiration of earlier termination of this Agreement.
- B. <u>Data Collection</u>. Pursuant to Section 119.071(5)(a)2a, Florida Statutes, social security numbers shall only be collected from Firm by the City should such number be needed for identification, verification, and/or tax reporting purposes. To the extent Firm collects an individual's social security number in the course of acting on behalf of the City pursuant to the terms and conditions this Agreement, Firm shall follow the requirements of Florida's Public Records Law.
  - C. <u>Access</u>. The City of Tampa is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In accordance with Florida Statutes, 119.0701, Firm agrees to comply with Florida's Public Records Law, including the following:
- Firm shall keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the services under this Agreement;
- 2. Upon request by the City, provide the City with copies of the requested records, having redacted records in total on in part that are exempt from disclosure by law or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time (with provision of a copy of such records to the CITY) on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed that provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law;
- 3. Ensure that records, in part or in total, that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement term and following completion (or earlier termination) of the Agreement if Firm does not transfer the records to the City;
- 4. Upon completion (or earlier termination) of the Agreement, Firm shall within 30 days after such event either transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the Firm or keep and maintain the public records in compliance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. If Firm transfers all public records to the City upon completion (or earlier termination) of the Agreement, Firm shall destroy any duplicate records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Firm keeps and maintains public records upon completion (or earlier termination) of the Agreement, Firm shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.

The failure of Firm to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and/or the provisions set forth in this Article shall be grounds for immediate unilateral termination of the Agreement by the City; the City shall also have the option to withhold compensation due Firm until records are received as provided herein.

IF FIRM HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO FIRM'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 813-274-8598, JIM.GREINER@TAMPAGOV.NET, AND CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT, TAMPA MUNICIPAL OFFICE BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR, 306 E. JACKSON ST. TAMPA, FLORIDA 33602.

35.8 <u>Indemnity.</u> In case any action at law or suit in equity may or shall be brought against the City or any of its officers, agents, or employees for or on account of the failure, omission, or neglect of the Firm or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, to do or perform any of the covenants, acts, matters, or things undertaken to be done or performed by the Firm or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, or from any injuries done to property or persons and caused by the negligence of the Firm or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, or in any other manner arising out of the negligent performance of the work required under the Contract Documents or this Agreement by the Firm then, to the extent such suit or action is due to the fault or neglect of the Firm or its subcontractors, employees or agents, the Firm shall defend such action or suit as if said actions or suits have been brought directly against the Firm; and the Firm shall also indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees from any and all loss, cost or damage whatever arising out of such actions or suits, in like manner and to all intents and purposes as if said actions or suits have been brought directly against the Firm, to the extent such suit or action is due to the fault or neglect of the Firm or its subcontractors, employees or agents.

The Firm shall and does hereby assume all liability for and agrees to indemnify the City or its representatives against any or all loss, costs, damages, and liability for any or by reason of any lien, claims or demands, either for materials purchased or for work performed by laborers, mechanics, and others and from any damages, costs, actions, or causes of action and judgments arising from injuries sustained by mechanics, laborers, and other person by reason of accidents or otherwise, to the extent caused by the negligence of said Firm, or its subcontractors, agents, employees, or workmen.

- 35.9 <u>Conflicts</u>. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement, the Contract Documents, the Project Construction Documents or any Exhibit hereto the order of priority shall be as follows: (1) this Agreement, (2) Exhibit E GMP Proposal, (3) Exhibit D Project Construction Documents, (4) the other Exhibits to this Agreement, (5) Change Orders.
- 35.10 <u>Patent Fees and Royalties</u>. The Firm shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs associated with any invention, design, process, or device which is subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others and is necessary for completion of the Work required by this Agreement, Contract Documents or Project Construction Documents.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name by its Mayor, and attested and its official seal to be hereunto affixed by its City Clerk, and Firm has caused this Agreement to be executed by an authorized individual and (as applicable) the corporate seal by proper authority affixed, in multiple counterparts as of the Effective Date.

# WESTRA CONSTRUCTION CORP.:

	By:
	Print Name:
	Title: Pres Exec/Sr Vice Pres CEO Gen Partner Mgr (Mgr-Mgd LLC) Auth. Member (Mbr-Mgd LLC)
	License no:
	Use entity Ch 471 481 489, etc. License no; individual's only if applicable.
	[SEAL]
ATTEST:	CITY OF TAMPA:
By:	By:
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk	Jane Castor, Mayor
[SEAL]	
	APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:
	Marcella T. Hamilton, Assistant City Attorney

# EXHIBIT A PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND

# PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND

Bond No. (enter bond number)	
Name of Contractor:	
Telephone Number of Contractor:	
Owner is The City of Tampa, Florida	
Principal Business Address of Owner:	306 E Jackson St, Tampa, FL 33602
	Contract Administration Department (280A4N)
Telephone Number of Owner:	813/274-8456
Contract Number Assigned by City to contract	which is the subject of this bond:
Legal Description or Address of Property Impr	oved or Contract Number is:
General Description of Work and Services:	
Ceneral Description of Work and Services	

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS That w	e,
	(Name of Contractor)
as Principal, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR, o	f the State of, and
a corporation arganized and aviation under and b	(Name of Surety)
Tampa, a municipal corporation organized and ex	of Florida, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the City of kisting under the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter called Owner
andCents (\$ whereof well and truly to be made, we bind oursel jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.	
THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Prince	ipal:
Performs the contract dated  of	, 20, between Principal and Owner for construction the contract being made a part of this bond by
of reference, in the time and in the manner prescrib	ed in the contract; and
	as defined in Section 255.05(1) (Section 713.01), Florida Statutes olies, used directly or indirectly by Principal in the prosecution of the
3. Pays Owner all losses, damages, expenses Owner sustains because of a default by Principa	s, costs, and attorney's fees, including appellate proceedings, that under the contract; and
4. Performs the guarantee of all work and materi then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full	als furnished under the contract for the time specified in the contract force.
such contract documents for a group of project design services survey or program management damages that are caused to Owner with respec- the Work incorporated by reference into the b permitted to Owner as against Contractor, the determined by the cost of completion of the Wor	Work for which this bond has been issued may be one of several is. This bond does not secure covenants to pay for or to perform services. The Owner/Obligee is expected to reasonably account for it to Principal's (Contractor's) default in performance of the scope of ond, and notwithstanding any contractual or common law remedy e obligation of Surety for any damages under this bond shall be k less the contract balance unpaid upon default of Contractor for the 100.00 per day for delays by the Contractor and/or Surety in reaching
Stat. and the limitations period to actions upon S	onditions for entitlement to payment set forth in Section 255.05, Fla. Section 255.05, Fla. Stat. bonds apply to claimants seeking payment d by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance

- with the notice and time limitation provisions in Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.

  7. The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the contract documents or other Work to be performed hereunder, or the specifications
- 7. The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the contract documents or other Work to be performed hereunder, or the specifications referred to therein shall in any way affect its obligations under this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the Contract or to Work or to the specifications.

DITES ON	
DATED ON, 20	
(Name of Principal)	(Name of Surety)
(Principal Business Address)	(Surety Address)
Ву	By(As Attorney in Fact)*
Title	
Telephone Number of Principal	-
	Approved as to legal sufficiency:
Countersignature:	By
(Name of Local Agency)	
(Address of Resident Agent)	
Ву	-<
Title	
Telephone Number of Local Agency	<u>-</u>

8. The above SURETY states that it has read all of the Contract Documents made by the CONTRACTOR with the CITY, hereto attached, and the terms and conditions of the contract and work, and is familiar therewith and in particular

\*(As Attorney in Fact) attach Power of Attorney and Current Certificate with Original Signature

# EXHIBIT B FORM OF FINAL RELEASE AND AFFIDAVIT CONSENT OF SURETY

# City of Tampa FIRM'S AFFIDAVIT & SURETY CONSENT (Page 1 of 2)

[Contract;		]
STATE OF		
COUNTY OF		
BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public, who being first duly sworn, deposes and s Contract;	personally appeared ays of his/her personal knowledg	ge the following with regard to
<ol> <li>Affiant is the which does business in the State of Florid on Firm's behalf. Firm executes this affida</li> </ol>	of a. Affiant has full authority to bind vit in accordance with section 713.	("Firm"), d Firm and execute this Affidavit 06 of the Florida Statutes.
<ol><li>Firm, pursuant to the above referenced co ("City") has furnished or caused to be furnished.</li></ol>	rnished labor, materials, and sen	with the City of Tampa, Florida, vices for construction of certain
<ol><li>Firm has complied with every particular te tested, approved, and fully completed as r</li></ol>	rm of the Contract and all parts of equired under the Contract.	f the work have been inspected,
<ol> <li>All bills and amounts payable for labor, so retainage, or otherwise in connection with have been paid except for the following (i.</li> </ol>	the Contract and work performed	plies, subcontracts, subcontract by or through Firm thereunder
LIST OF EX	CEPTIONS	AMOUNT OWED/DUE
A, NONE	Brook and the second	\$ NONE
		\$ NONE
<ol> <li>There are no claims or suits pending age furnished or otherwise under the Co NONE</li> </ol>	gainst Firm or anyone in connect ontract except for the following	tion with work done, materials ng (if none, write "NONE"):
<ol><li>The City, its elected officials, officers, volu arise out of or relate to the Contract.</li></ol>	nteers, and/or employees, are rele	eased from any claim that might
	(11,741111	
	Ву:	*
	Print name:	
Sworn to and subscribed before me		, 20, by
	who is	nersonally known to me
or produced a state driver lice the contents of this document are truthful	nse as identification, and who	swore or affirmed to me that
FACETY MOTARY CEALS	Print Name:	
[AFFIX NOTARY SEAL]	Notary Public – State of	
	My Commission Expires:	
	Serial Number, if any:	

# City of Tampa FIRM'S AFFIDAVIT & SURETY CONSENT (Page 2 of 2)

[Contract;	]
We,	, who as surety("Surety") executed _ (hereinafter individually or collectively as context may
examined the foregoing affidavit executed on be regarding amounts owing and/or suits pending deems necessary to satisfy it that all claims for agree, through our below authorized signatory, including any retained percentage(s), to Firm (Contract. Specifically, Surety concurs that full expressly releases the City, its elected officials, same harmless from any liability, claims, dispute being made.	chalf of ("Firm") together with such of Firm's books and records as Surety labor and materials have been satisfactorily settled, hereby that the City of Tampa ("City") may make full payment, (and/or its assigns) of the stipulated balance due on the payment to Firm (and/or its assigns) is appropriate and officers, volunteers, and/or employees, and agrees to hold es, or litigation which may ensue because of such payment
Surety of its obligations under the Bond; (ii) be Bond; or (iii) be interpreted as a determination between Firm and a subcontractor/supplier of Fir necessary (including by way of example but not	ch payment, nor such payment being made shall (i) relieve construed as a waiver of any of the City's rights under the by the City as to the merits of any controversy or dispute m. Further, the obligation of the Bond shall be extended as limitation, for the payment of any and all legitimate claims, h the Contract that may be made against Firm or against een paid, settled, or compromised.
	SURETY:
	By:*
[SEAL]	Attorney-In-Fact (attach Power of Attorney) Type/Print name:
	Countersigned by Florida Licensed Insurance Agent:
	Type/Print name:*
	Business Address:
STATE OF	
COUNTY OF	
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, per who is personally known to me or produ and after taking an oath executed the forego therein expressed and stated that he/she has t	rsonally appeared as identification, bing instrument in the name of Surety for the purposes the legal authority to execute same on Surety's behalf.
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	day of, 20
[AFFIX NOTARY SEAL]	Print Name:* Notary Public – State of
	My Commission Expires:
	Serial Number, if any:

# EXHIBIT C CITY'S EQUAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

#### Exhibit C

# Tampa's Equal Business Opportunity Program Procedures for GMP Contracts

- The City of Tampa's Equal Business Opportunity Program (EBO) requires setting a construction subcontract goal on each GMP under the CM /or D-Build delivery system.
- Prior to the time construction subcontract goals are set, the Construction Manager (CM)
  or the Design-Builder (D-B) provides information on subcontract packages planned for
  the construction phase(s) and their sequencing.

(Ref: use Detailed GMP Estimate and MBD Form-80 PTW)

- The CM (or D-B) participates in a meeting wherein the City will establish narrowlytailored project goals for SLBE and/or W/MBE subcontractor participation on the project. (Ref: use MBD Form-70)
- For each subcontracting package to be bid, the CM (or D-B) confirms with the MBD Office, the City's minimum contact list of available SLBE and/or W/MBE firms to be solicited. Note: strategic, extensive outreach is the CM/DB's responsibility (i.e. GFECP) (Ref: use Minimum Contact List provided w/final Project EBO Determination Goal)
- The CM (or D-B) documents the notification of all potential subcontractors, including the SLBE or W/MBE firms identified above, i.e. minimum contact list of certified firms.
   (Ref: use DMI 10-20 for construction phase Solicitation/Utilization outcomes)
- The CM (or D-B) receives, opens, and tabulates subcontract bid results. The City, including representatives of the managing department and the MBD Office, may be present for the bid openings or to review the bids submitted.
   (Ref: use MBD Form-50 GFECP outreach w/documentation)
- The CM (or D-B) provides to the City, a tabulation of all bids received and its
  determination of the lowest responsive/responsible bidder. If bids received exceed
  contracted Guaranteed Maximum Price, CM (or D-B) advises City as to how they will
  proceed. If re-bidding is selected, notification at least equal to the original solicitation
  will occur. (Ref: Reaffirm EBO Outreach)
- As all subcontracts are executed, final copies are provided to the City. Where
  participation is achieved via sub-subcontractors and/or suppliers, the CM (or D-B)
  provides the City and MBD with copy of executed agreement or purchase order as
  documentation. (Ref: use MBD Form-40 LOIs execute "Letters-of-Intent")
- During construction, monitoring activities may including but may not be limited to, subcontractor payment reports to be submitted with pay requests, prior approval by the MBD Office and the managing departments, of any replacement of SLBE or W/MBE subcontractors, and a report of final amounts paid to all subcontractors.

(Ref: use #1-DMI 30 Form w/Pay Applications; #2-Prime & Subs must log into Diversity Mgt. Compliance System to report payment activity)

# EXHIBIT D

# PROJECT CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

# WESTRA CONSTURCTION CORP.

incorporated herein by reference and are a part of this Agreement

(A Record set on file with the Contract Administration Department).

# EXHIBIT E

WESTRA CONSTRUCTION CORP.'s GMP PROPOSAL, dated March 15, 2021.



# Westra Construction Corp.

# UNDERGROUND UTILITIES · WATER-SEWER · DRAINAGE · SEWER TREATMENT PLANTS

March 15, 2021

Mr. Kevin Becotte, PE City of Tampa Water Department 4900 W. Lemon St. Tampa, FL 33609

Reference: Contract 20-C-00032; Water Main Improvements – Design Build

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Proposal No. 1;

Dear Mr. Becotte:

Westra Construction Corp. (Firm) appreciates the opportunity to submit this GMP No. 1 for construction of a portion of Contract 20-C-00032 Water Main Improvements - Design-Build (Project) based on the attached and incorporated conceptual drawings dated March 2021.

The GMP Proposal No. 1 includes the construction of seven (7) non-contiguous water main construction and/or replacement located throughout the City of Tampa (City) water service area, within right of way owned or controlled by the City, FDOT, and Hillsborough County.

The GMP Proposal No. 1 includes installation of approximately 21,571 lineal feet (lf) of 6-inch through 12-inch diameter water mains to replace aged and/or under-sized 2-inch though 12-inch diameter water mains, as well as tapping and connecting to existing Water Main (WM), hydrants, services, abandonment in place of existing WM, surface restoration and all miscellaneous and appurtenant work. The work consists of furnishing, constructing, installing, testing, disinfecting and maintaining the proposed water mains in place until the constructed facilities are accepted by the City.

Attached and incorporated into this GMP Proposal No. 1are:

- Scope Assumptions and Clarifications
- Proposal Cost Summary & Breakdown
- · Construction Schedule

The Cost of Construction for GMP Proposal No. 1 is Five Million Four Hundred Forty Thousand Seven-Hundred Ninety-Two Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents (\$5,440,792.98) and the GMP Proposal No. 1 Guaranteed Maximum Price is Five Million Six Hundred Forty Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-Two Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents (\$5,640,792.98).

A baseline Construction Schedule showing the proposed Notice to Proceed, Substantial Completion, and Final Completion dates for Project has been attached. The following Milestone dates for the Project shall remain firm in every schedule with the provision the City's Notice to Proceed.

Notice to Proceed Date As provided by the City
Substantial Completion Date 286 Calendar days after NTP
Final Completion Date 316 Calendar days after NTP

Respectfully,

Matthew Hester, CGC, PMP Design-Build Program Manager

Westra Construction Corp. P.O. Box 1149 1263 12th Avenue East Palmetto, FL 34221

Cc: Ms. Seung Park (via email: Seung.Park@tampagov.net)

Mr. Rory Jones (via email: Rory.Jones@tampagov.net)
Mr. Michael Beukema (via email: Mike@westraconst.com)

# Scope Assumptions and Clarifications

- 1. The GMP Proposal No. 1 is based on the conceptual drawings dated March 2021.
- 2. Design-Build Fee, Bond, and General Conditions are stipulated lump sum items and exempt from retainage;
- 3. No hazardous or contaminated soil removal or treatment is needed;
- 4. No treatment of groundwater is included:
- 5. No wildlife relocation services or permitting is needed;
- 6. Project schedule is based on 10 hours per day, 5 days per week. Subject to approval from the City and local residents (HOA)- Saturdays may be used for clean-up and/or make-up days due to weather and specialized functions such as service connections:
- 7. All materials testing is included in the GMP and shall be provided by the Firm;
- 8. No grout fill abandonment of existing pipe is planned for on pipe 8 inches in diameter, or smaller.
- 9. No remediation and/or removal of asbestos material is planned for.
- 10. Pavement restoration shall conform to the standards of the agency having jurisdiction. At a minimum, roads with newer pavement (<10 yrs) will be milled with a 1" asphalt overlay from curb to curb for parallel cuts and 50 feet in each direction for perpendicular cuts.</p>



# Water Main Improvements - Design Build : GMP 1 Proposal Cost Summary & Breakdown

5,640,792.98				\$	TOTAL OF GMP & OCC (Sum of Items 1-5): \$	
200,000.00	200,000.00 \$	\$	NTE	1	Owner Contolled Contingency	Item 05: OCC
5,440,792.98				\$	TOTAL GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (Sum of Items 1-4);	
355,939.73	355,939.73 \$	45	LS	1	Design-Build Contractor Fee (7% of Cost of Construction):	Item 04: GC
803,080.00	\$03,080.00 \$	\$	(ST) mns dmn7	1	General Conditions	Item 03: GC
508,833.00	\$ 00.8833.00	\$	NTE	1	Engineer's Services During Construction (SDC's)	Item 02: SDC
				The second		
3,772,940.25	3,772,940.25 \$	\$	Not To Exceed (NTE)	1	Contractor Cost	Item 01: CC
Amount	Unit Price	ח	Unit of Measurement	Quantity	Description	



# Proposal Cost Summary & Breakdown Contract 20-C-32 (Water Main Improvements Design Build) GMP 1 Westra Construction Corp.

City of Tampa Contact: Mr. Kevin Becotte, P.E.	Design-Build Contac	t: Matthew Hester, CGC, PMP			
ITEM	DESCRIPTION	QUANTITY	UNIT	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
	ITEM 1: CONTRACTOR CO	ST			
2100	4" DUCTILEIRON PIPE	392.00	LF	67.08	\$26,295
2102	6* DUCTILE IRON PIPE	1,506.00	LF	75.46	\$113,642
2104	8" DUCTILETRON PIPE	452,00	LF	118,23	\$53,439
2106	12" DUCTILE IRON PIPE	100,00	LF	135.91	\$13,59
2149	2" PVC PIPE AND FITTINGS AT VARIOUS DEPTHS	40.00	LF	48,81	\$1,95
2201	4" RESTRAINTED JOINT PVC BY HDD	392.00	LF	72.14	\$28,27
2207	6" RESTRAINTED JOINT PVC BY HDD	12875,00	LF	69,41	\$893,65
2208	8" RESTRAINTED JOINT PVC BY HDD	3988.00	LF	87.46	\$348,79
2212	12" RESTRAINTED JOINT PVC BY HDD	1866,00	LF	126.51	\$236,06
2600	CUT & PLUG 3" & SMALLER IN DIAMETER PIPE	11.00	EA	777.84	\$8,55
2601	CUT & PLUG 4", 6" & 8" DIAMETER PIPE	20.00	EA	1030.00	\$20,60
3001	6* WEDGE-ACTION MJ OR FLANGE RESTRAINT	20,00	EA	135.09	\$2,70
3002	8" WEDGE-ACTION MI OR FLANGE RESTRAINT	3,00	EA	154.56	\$46
3070	4" PUSH-ON GASKET (GRIPPER-TYPE) RESTRAINT	2.00	EA	178.78	\$35
3071	6" PUSH-ON GASKET (GRIPPER-TYPE) RESTRAINT	10.00	EA	221.20	\$2,21
3072	8* PUSH-ON GASKET (GRIPPER-TYPE) RESTRAINT	4.00	EA.	281.80	\$1,12
3073	12" PUSH-ON GASKET (GRIPPER-TYPE) RESTRAINT	3.00	EA	390,88	\$1,17
4000	4" DI MJ PLUG/CAP	3.00	EA	204.31	\$61
4004	6" DI MJ PLUG/CAP	9.00	EA	286,97	\$2,58
4005	6" MJ BEND, OFFSET, SLEEVE OR REDUCER	70.00	EA	515.00	\$36,05
4006	6° DI MJ TEE	9.00	EA	900.00	\$8,10
4008	8° DI MJ PLUG OR CAP	7.00	EA	286.75	\$2,00
4009	R" DI MJ BEND, OFFSET, SLEEVE OR REDUCER	80.00	EA	512.00	\$40,96
4010.2	F&I 8"X 6" DI MJ TEE	4.00	EA	708,70	\$2,83
4010,3	F&I 8"x 8" DI MJ TEE	7.00	EA	759,61	\$5,31
4010.4	F&I 8"x 8" DI MJ CROSS	1.00	EA	1111.78	\$1,11
4013	F&I 12* DI MI SLEEVE OR REDUCER	7.00	EA	942.17	\$6,59
4013.1	F&I 12* DI MJ 11.25 DEGREE (OR22.5 DEGREE) BEND	1.00	EA	932.43	\$93
4013.2	F&T 12* 45 DEGREE DI MJ BEND	2.00	EA	959.09	\$1,91
4013.3	F&1 12" 90 DEGREE DI MU BEND	1.00	EA	1005.15	\$1,00
4014.1	F&1 12" X 4" (OR 6") DI MJ TEE	2.00	EA	1124.61	\$2,24
4014.2	F&I 12" X 8" DI MJ TEE WITH	1.00	EA	1219.13	\$1,21
4014.3	F&U2* X12* DIMITEE	1.00	EA	1478.02	
4014.4	F&I 12" X 12" DI MJ CROSS	2.00	EA	1763.52	\$1,47
5000	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY	22.00	EA	5196.61	\$3,52
5101	REMOVE & SALVAGE HYDRANT REMOVAL			11,50,000	\$114,32
5300	PROTESTION POST	22.00	EA	1010,65 528,83	\$22,23
6002	6° GATE OR TAPPING VALVE WITH BOX		EA		\$12,69
6003	8* GATE VALVE OR TAPPING VALVE (WOW) W/ BOX	51.00	EA	2384.09	\$121,58
6005	12* GATE VALVE OR TAPPING VALVE (WOW) W/ BOX	17.00	EA	2751,33	\$46,77
6080	2-FT VALVE NUT EXTENSION	3,00	EA	4079.69	\$12,23
7001.2	6° X 6° MJ TAPPING SLEEVE & MAKE TAP	71.00	EA	150.00	\$10,65
7002,2	8" X 6" STEEL TAPPING SLEEVE & MAKE TAP		EA	2682.41	\$18,77
7002.3	8"X8" MJ TAP SLEEVE & MAKE TAP	10,00	EA	2300.00	\$23,00
7003.2	12"X6" STEEL TAP SLEEVE & MAKE TAP	4.00	EA	3184.64	\$12,73
7003.4	12"X12" MJ TAP SLEEVE & MAKE TAP	1,00	EA	2225.50	\$2,22
8100		1.00	EA	5372.78	\$5,37
8101	FT & 1 - 3/4* OR 1* METER SERVICE (0-15*)	227.00	EA	1122.83	\$254,88
8109	FT & 1 - 3/4" METER SERVICE (15-80")	252.00	EA	1840.13	\$463,71
200	FT &1-1"-2" METER SERVICE ON PVCP, DIP	3.00	EA	3170.94	\$9,51
9201 9204	FURNISH, PLACE & COMPACT CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE	263.00	CY	135,53	\$35,64
	F & I ASPHALT SURFACE SP12.5 - 1*	1,175.00	SY	32,87	\$38,62
9205	FURNISH, PLACE & COMPACT ASPH SP-9.5 - 1"	7,000.00	SY	19.72	\$138,040
920x	MOBILIZATION TO PERFORM MECHANICAL MILLING	3.00	EA	2190.73	\$6,57



# Proposal Cost Summary & Breakdown Contract 20-C-32 (Water Main Improvements Design Build) GMP 1 Westra Construction Corp.

	ECHANICAL MILLING OF ASPHALT ROADWAYS IN 1*	7,000.00	SY	10,41	\$72,870.00
	ESTORE 6" THICK CONCRETE DRIVEWAY	62.00	SY	103,83	\$6,437.40
	ESTORE BRICK PAVEMENT INCLUDING BASE	20.00	SY	250,67	\$5,013.4
	EL VALLEY CURB	10.00	LF	93,95	\$939.5
	EL CONCRETE CURB	350.00	LF	50.00	\$17,500.0
	RADE & SOD ROADSIDE/DITCH BOTTOMS & SIDES-B	7,600.00	SY	4.98	\$37,848.00
	ETECTABLE WARNING ON CONCRETE WALK WAY  EL 4* THECK CONCRETE SIDEWALK	5.00	EA	1779.97	\$8,899.85
		249.00	SY	83.53	\$20,798.97
	DEO PHOTOGRAPHY	22,560.00	LF	1,03	\$23,236.80
	CCAVATION EXPLORATORY PTIS	30.00	EA	450.00	\$13,500.00
	.OW OFF ASBLY W. VALVE & METER BOX	3,00	EA	3135.45	\$9,406.35
	R RELEASVE VALVE W/ PEDESTAL PER DETAIL	1.00	EA	5726.35	\$5,726.35
	ARIOUS PROJECT MOBILIZATIONS	1.00	LS	94,660.00	\$94,660.00
	AINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC	1.00	LS	171,000.00	\$171,000.00
	ONCRETE + ASPHALT REMOVAL, HANDLING, DISPOSAL	1,00	LS	56,942.00	\$56,942.00
	DNNECT TO EXISTING WATER MAIN	10.00	EA	3,345.00	\$33,450,00
21	IM_OF CONTRACTORS COST	1.00	NIE	5	3,772,940.25
mayora.	ITEM 2: SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION (SDC)				
Total Total	EERING SDC	1.00	6000	F92 DC4 DD	622 B. ( 4 G.
SUC I	OF, ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION	1.00	NIE	\$23,964.00	\$23,964.00
SDC 2	ONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION	1.00	NIE	\$144,125.00	\$144,125.00
SDC 3	ELD STAKEOUT	1.00	NTE	\$132,990.00	\$132,990.00
SDC 4	-BUILT/RECORD DRAWINGS	1.00	NIE	\$42,205.00	\$42,205.00
	DEVELOPMENT				
SDC 5	REL BUSINESS GROUP	1.00	NIE	85,000.00	\$85,000.00
PUBLIC	OUTREACH				
SDC 6	ALERIN GROUP	1,00	NTE	73,549.00	\$73,549.00
SDC 7	ALERIN EXPENSES	1,00	LS	7,000.00	\$7,000.00
SI	IM OF SDC'S	1.00	NIE	s	508,833.00
	ITEM 3: GENERAL CONDITIONS				
GC 1 M	SCELLANEOUS WORK & CLEANUP	1.00	LS	82,135.00	\$82,135.00
GC 2	. SUPERINTENDENT (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	100,000.00	\$100,000.00
GC 3 PR	OFECT EXPEDITER / SENIOR PM (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	149,885.00	\$149,885.00
	OJECT ESTIMATOR/ MATERIAL/ SUB COORDINATER (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	67,500.00	\$67,500.00
	SIGN BUILD TEAM MANAGER (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	99,820.00	\$99,820.00
	FTEY MANAGER (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	96,250.00	\$96,250.00
	ELD ENGINEER (REFERENCE FEE SHEET)	1.00	LS	84,390.00	\$84,390.00
	OSION CONTROL/INLET PROTECTION/BMP/TREE PROTECTION	1.00	LS	28,000.00	\$28,000.00
	INSTRUCTION GENERAL LAYDOWN/OFFICE SITE (SUM OF 1-5 BELOW)	1.00	LS	30,000.00	\$30,000,00
00.9	Site Privacy Fencing	1.00	LS	12,000.00	\$12,000,00
2	Silt Fencing & Maintenance	1.00	LS	6,000.00	\$6,000.00
3	Sanitary Solutions Temporary Construction Utilities	1.00	LS	2,500.00 9,500.00	\$2,500.00
GC 10 BC	ND	1.00	LS	65,100.00	\$65,100.00
	M OF GENERAL CONDITIONS (STIPULATED)	1.00	LS		7.00.0
	ITEM 4: DESIGN BUILD FEE			S	803,080,00
DE	SIGN BUILD FEE OF 7%	1.00	LS	355,939.73	\$355,939.73

# ARIEL Business Group, Inc. 20-C-00032: Water Main Improvement Design-Build Project Task Order 001.2-20-C-00032(T0001.2) - Not-To-Exceed 4 Month Budget

Resource Budget Allocation	Rate	<b>Budgeted Hours</b>	Tota	Budgeted
Principal	\$170	111	\$	18,870
Project Manager	\$135	175	\$	23,625
Project Coordinator WMBE	\$105	200	\$	21,000
Project Coordinator Workforce/Outreach	\$105	150	\$	15,750
Project Analyst	\$95	51	\$	4845
Administrative Support	\$45	20	\$	900
Resource Budget Allocation Subtotal		707	\$	85,000

MCKIM & CREED ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR 20-C-00032 WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN - BUILD GMP 1 ESDC

		ENGINEERIN	ENGINEERING	PROJECT	JECT MANAGER PROJECT ENGINEER PROJECT ENGINEER INTERN	PROJECT	ENGINEER	PROJECT	ENGINEER	ENGINEE	R INTERN	DESIGNER II	IER II	SR. PROJECT ADMININSTRATOR	TRATOR	LABOR	OR	OTHER DIR	OTHER DIRECT COSTS	TOTAL
WESTRA	Hourty Rate	\$260	20	a	\$225	24	\$185	\$156	18	5	5140	\$127	_	8110	0			MILEAGE	PRINTING	
SIGN PHASE																1		1	1	
TASK 1	Project Management	4	\$ 1,040	52	\$ 5,850	20	\$ 3,700	32	\$ 4,960	30	\$ 4,200	2	\$ 254	36	\$ 3,960	150	\$ 23,964	0.5	\$ 0	\$ 23,964
TASK 2	Construction	0	99	0	0 \$	0	9	٥	\$ 0	0	0 80	0	0 \$	0	0 80		0 \$	\$0	0\$	0\$
TASK 3	Record Drawings	-	\$ 260	2	\$ 450	4	\$ 740	14	\$ 2,170	22	\$ 3,080	260	\$ 33,020	10	\$ 550	308	\$ 40,270	0 \$	\$ 244	\$ 40,514
TASK 4	Final Certifications and Clearances	0	0.5	-	\$ 225	2	\$ 370	4	\$ 620	24	\$ 280	0	9	4	\$ 440	2	\$ 1,935	20	0.\$	5 1,935
SUBTOTAL SERV	SUBTOTAL SERVICES IN TASKS 14	5	\$1,300	23	\$6,525	26	\$4,810	50	87,750	54	\$7,560	262	\$33,274	45	\$4,950	127	\$66,169	20	\$ 244	\$ 66,413

# PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FY2020 CIP WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN - BUILD

GMP #1 Construction Phase Detail

		PRII	PRINCIPAL	SRP	SR PROJECT MGR	MGR	PM/PROF ENG	F ENG		PLS	-	SURV TECH	ECH	SURV	SURVEY CREW	S	CAD TECH	H	SR INSPECTOR	H	ADMIN ASST	ASST		1000	
GMP 001	Hourly Rate		\$225.00		\$20	\$200.00		\$180.00		\$155.00	00	-	\$100.00		\$135.00		\$120,00		\$11	\$110.00		\$90.00		DIAL	
		MH	Cost	MH	-	Cost	MH	Cost	MH	Cost		MH	Cost	MH	Cost	MH	Cost	MH	-	Cost	MH	Cost	MH	0	Cost
	TASK DESCRIPTION				_														-						
CONSTRUCTION PHASE	PHASE			Щ	$\ $	Ħ	11	П	Ц	I	H	1	П			Ц	1	H	$\ $	H	1			11	
TASK 1	Prof Services During Construction - N/A, - Not included this base																								
TASK 2	Construction Observation - One respector full time with office support	57.5	\$ 12,938	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	10	23,000	0		0	us		8		0	49	0	. VII	960		\$ 105,600 2	8.75	28.75 \$ 2,588	1161.3	45	44,125
TASK 3	Construction Staking - Survey -Westa to provide CAD flas of design	0		0	60	1	0	10	62	o.	9,610	248 \$	24,800	620	\$ 83,700	124	\$ 14,880	0	W		0	1.	1054	20	132,990
TASK 4	Process Data Points for As-Builts - Optional	0	<b>19</b>	0	49	r	0		46	69	061,7	0		0	w	- 92	\$ 11,040	0	.00	-	0		138	us-	18,170
TASK 5	Supplemental Services (As Needed)	o	V2	0	49	F	0	<i>y</i> 1	0	s		0		0	vo	0	59	0	69	7	0	'a	0	S	
TOTAL - GMP 1 - 20C-32	100-32	57.5	57.5 \$ 12,938		115 \$ 23,000	144	0	5	1.12	108 \$ 16,740		8	24,800	620	248 \$ 24,800 620 \$ 83,700		216 \$ 25,920	096 08		\$ 105,600 28.75 \$ 2,588 2353.3 \$	8.75 \$	2,588	2353.3	100	295,285
					-					L		-						H	-		ŀ				ı

Task 1 Bass Project Group 1 - 5/3/2021 - 8/5/2021 Project Group 2 - 6/1/2021 - 8/19/2021 Project Group 3 - 7/19/2021 - 8/26-2021

	TOTAL	\$ 100,000	\$ 149,885	\$ 67,500	\$ 99,820	\$ 96,250	\$ 84,390
POSAL NO. 1 ET	RATE	\$ 140.00 \$ 100,000	\$ 155.00	\$ 135.00	\$ 230.00	\$ 175.00	\$ 85.00
WESTRA CONSTRUCTION CORP. EED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) PROPC GENERAL CONDITIONS FEE SHEET	HOURS	714	296	200	434	550	993
WESTRA CONSTRUCTION CORP. GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) PROPOSAL NO. 1 GENERAL CONDITIONS FEE SHEET	LABOR CATEGORY	Sr. Superintindent	Sr. Project Manager	Estimator	DB Manager	Safety Manager	Field Engineer
	GENERAL CONDITIONS ITEM NO.	GC 3	GC 4	GC 5	9 29	60.7	GC 7

FY20 CIP CITYWIDE WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT | COMMUNITY OUTREACH SERVICES SCOPE & FEE | SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 23, 2021) GMP #1 (MAY 2021 - SEPTEMBER 2021)



Submitted To: Mr. Mike Beukema, President Westra Construction 1263 12th Avenue E. Palmetto, Fl. 34221

Labor Categories	Hourly Rates	Public Engagement   Outreach Activities	Website Development   Maintenance	Mobile App Development   Maintenance	Contract Management	Total Hours	Fao
Contract/QC/Project Manager	\$138.00	20	4	4	10	38	\$ 5,244.00
Community Outreach Specialist	\$ 135,00	250	24	16		290	\$39,150.00
Graphic Designor	\$ 121.50	20				20	\$ 2,430.00
Website/Mobile App Developer	\$ 127.00		80	120		200	\$25,400.00
Vldeographer	\$ 132.50					0	s -
Video Editor	\$ 121.50					0	\$ -
Multimedia Specialist	\$ 127.00					0	\$ -
Photographer/Drone Operator	\$ 132.50		10			10	\$ 1,325.00
Total		290	118	140		548	\$73,549.00

			The second secon
Total Fee			\$73,549.00



a Traits Title	Title	Given Work	Given Work Given Earliest 04/2020	0	01/2021	8		03/2021		H	0	Н	+	Q1 / 2022	n
0 110	O BO SECTION OF THE REAL		Cate Do come	4		0	0	1 0	09	10	11 11	-	12	1	-
	Special Print		Feb B, 2027 25022, GMP 001,	Wild Improver	20022, CMP 001, WM Impowements Project		-			+			t		1
0	Start		Feb 12, 2021		- Sec					_					
N	GMP & NTP Develpoment			GMP & NTP Development	repoment		+			-			+		ſ
9	GMP Submittal		Feb 12, 2021	0	CAMP Submittal										-
0 4	PTW Goal Setting Meeting		Feb 12, 2021	PTW GOALS	PTW Goal Setting Meeting										-
0 0	GMP Approval		Mar 12, 2021		GMP Approval (I)										
0 9	CoT Council Approval		May E, 2021		STS	Cot Counci Approval ®									_
0 4	Anticipated NTP		May 31, 2021			Aniiopared NTP @									_
00	Project Group 1: Holmes St.				ď	Project Group 1: Heimes St.	1						_		_
0 6	Mobilization		May 30, 2021	_		Mobilization							_		
0 01	Utility Investigation		June 6, 2021			Usiny investigation				_					
0	Mainline Installation via HDD		June 6, 2021			Mainline installation via HOD		-					_		_
12 @	Mainline Installation via Open Out		Jun 13, 2021			Maintine Installation via Open Cut	H								
13 @	Service Installation		Jun 13, 2021			Service Installation	-								_
14.0	Pressure Test + Bao-T		Aug 15, 2021	_				Passuro Test + Sac-T		_					
15 @	Swap Services		Aug 23, 2021	_				Swap Services							_
16 @	Site Restoration		Aug 30, 2021					Sia Remoration	mon min	_					_
17 110	Project Graup & Tarness Pt. and Tompte Grant		5/31/24			Project Group & Tembos Pil, and Temple Creat	De Pil, and leng	Se Creat		-		ľ			
18 @	Mobilization		Aug 1, 2021				Me	Medization II		_					_
19 @	Utilly investigation		Aug 1, 2021				Ulimina	Ulity Investoation		_					
20 00	Mainline Installation via HDD		Aug 8, 2021				Maintine installation via HDO	Son who Hoo	-	_					
21 0	Mainline Installation via Open Cur.		Aug 16, 2027			2	Sandon Instituti	Manine Institution vs Open Gal			gra.				
22 0	Service installation		Aug 22, 2021					Service Intradiction		-	B		_		
0 22	Pressure Test + Bac-T		Oct 31, 2021							Pressure Test + Bac-T	1 7				
24 6	Swap Services		Nov 1, 2021							Swan San	was Services				
25 0	Site Restoration		Nov 15, 2021							88	Ste Fest Syrdon	0			
25 110	Project Group 2 Minn.		July 19, 2021							Proje	Project Group 2: Misc.		1		-
27 0	Oakdell		Nov 29, 2021								80	Oakest			
28 6	N. 10th St.		Dec 19, 2021							_		N. 109 St.	-		-
0 8	35th St.		Jan 10, 2022							_			2000	1	
30 00	Troydale		Jan 31, 2022	-			_			_				Tardet	-
31 0	S Trusk St.		Feb 21, 2022							_				STREETS	1
22 0	P. C.		Mar 13, 2022							_			_		H

# EXHIBIT F INSURANCE

#### CITY OF TAMPA INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Prior to commencing any work or services or taking occupancy under that certain written agreement or award (for purposes of this document, Agreement) between the City of Tampa, Florida (City) and Firm/Awardee/Contractor/Consultant/Lessee/non-City party, etc. (for purposes of this document, Firm) to which this document is attached and incorporated as an Exhibit or otherwise, and continuing during the term of said Agreement (or longer if the Agreement and/or this document so requires), Firm shall provide pay for, and maintain insurance against claims for injuries to persons (including death) or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Agreement (including without limitation occupancy and/or use of certain property/premises) by Firm, its agents, representatives, employees, suppliers, subtenants, or subcontractors (which term includes subconsultants, as applicable) of any tier subject to the terms and conditions of this document. Firm's maintenance of insurance coverage as required herein is a material element of the Agreement and the failure to maintain or renew coverage or provide evidence of same (defined to include without limitation Firm's affirmative duty to provide from time to time upon City's request certificates of insurance complete and certified copies of Firm's insurance policies. forms, and endorsements, information on the amount of claims payments or reserves chargeable to the aggregate amount of coverage(s) whether during the term of the Agreement or after as may be requested by the City in response to an issue or potential claim arising out of or related to the Agreement to which Firm's insurance obligations hereunder may apply or possibly help mitigate) may be treated as a material breach of the Agreement. Should at any time Firm not maintain the insurance coverages required. City at its sole option (but without any obligation or waiver of its rights) may (i) terminate the Agreement or (ii) purchase such coverages as City deems necessary to protect itself (charging Firm for same) and at City's option suspending Firm's performance until such coverage is in place. If Firm does not reimburse City for such costs within 10 days after demand, in addition to any other rights, City shall also have the right to offset such costs from amounts due Firm under any agreement with the City. All provisions intended to survive or to be performed subsequent to the expiration or termination of the Agreement shall survive, including without limitation Firm's obligation to maintain or renew coverage, provide evidence of coverage and certified copies of policies, etc. upon City's request and/or in response to a potential claim, litigation, etc.

The City reserves the right from time to time to modify or waive any or all of these insurance requirements (or to reject policies) based on the specific nature of goods/services to be provided, nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, financial condition, failure to operate legally, or other special circumstances. If Firm maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown herein, the City requires and shall be entitled to such broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by Firm. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements are sufficient to cover Firm's interests, liabilities, or obligations. Required insurance shall not limit Firm's liability.

Firm acknowledges and agrees Firm and not the City is the party in the best position to determine applicability (e.g. "IF APPLICABLE"), confirm, and/or verify its insurance coverage. Acceptance by the City, or by any of its employees, representatives, agents, etc. of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies pursuant to the terms of this document and the Agreement evidencing insurance coverages and limits does not constitute approval or agreement that the insurance requirements have been met or that coverages or policies are in compliance. Furthermore, receipt, acceptance, and/or approval of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies or copies of policies by the City, or by any of its employees, representatives, agents, etc., which indicate less coverage than required does not constitute a waiver of Firm's obligation to fulfill these insurance requirements.

### MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 1

- A. Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance on the most current Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 or its equivalent on an "occurrence" basis (Modified Occurrence or Claims Made forms are not acceptable without prior written consent of the City). Coverage must be provided to cover liability contemplated by the Agreement including without limitation premises and operations, independent contractors, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property damage, bodily, personal and advertising injury, contractual liability, explosion, collapse, underground coverages, personal injury liability, death, employees-as-insureds. Products and completed operations liability coverage maintained for at least 3 years after completion of work. Limits shall not be less than \$1M per occurrence and \$2M general aggregate for Agreements. If a general aggregate limit applies; it shall apply separately to the project/location (ISO CG 2S 03 or 2S 04 or equivalent). (ALWAYS APPLICABLE)
- B. <u>Automobile Liability (AL) Insurance</u> in accordance with Florida law, as to the ownership, maintenance, and use of all owned, non-owned, leased, or hired vehicles. At insurance shall not be less than: (a) \$500,000 combined single limit each occurrence bodily injury and property damage for Agreements valued at \$100,000 or less or (b) \$1M combined single limit each occurrence bodily injury and property damage for Agreements valued over \$100,000. If transportation of hazardous material involved, the MCS-90 endorsement (or equivalent). (ALWAYS APPLICABLE)
- C. Worker's Compensation (WC) & Employer's Liability Insurance for all employees engaged under the Agreement, Worker's Compensation as required by Florida law. Employer's Liability with minimum limits of (a) \$500,000 bodily injury by accident and each accident, bodily injury by disease policy limit, and bodily injury by disease each employee for Agreements valued at \$100,000 and under or (b) \$1M bodily injury by accident and each accident, bodily injury by disease policy limit, and bodily injury by disease each for all other Agreements. (ALWAYS APPLICABLE)
- D. Excess (Umbrella) Liability Insurance for Agreements valued at \$2M or more, Firm will provide an increasing amount of liability coverage as the amount of work increases. A \$50M excess liability tower will be provided for the first three years. Limits will be reviewed at the renewal for appropriateness, with an eventual maximum limit of \$100M in excess coverage. May also compensate for a deficiency in CGL, AL, or WC. (ALWAYS APPLICABLE)

- E. <u>Builder's Risk Insurance</u> for property loss exposure associated with construction/renovation/additions to buildings or structures, including materials or fixtures to be incorporated. Must be "All Risk" form with limits of no less than the project's value under construction and not accepted by the City, have no coinsurance penalties, eliminate the "occupancy clause", cover Finn (together with its contractors, subcontractors of every tier, and suppliers), and name City as a Loss Payee. Firm to provide an increasing limit of coverage to coincide with the issuance of GMP's, Wind/named storm and flood sub-limits not to exceed \$50M. (IF APPLICABLE)
- F. Installation Floater coverage for property (usually highly valued equipment or materials such as compressors, generators, etc.) during its installation. Coverage must be "All Risk" including installation and transit for no less than 100% of the installed replacement cost value. (IF APPLICABLE)
- G. Architects & Engineers Liability / Professional Liability (E&O)/ Contractors Professional Liability (CPrL)/ Medical Malpractice Insurance where Agreement involves Florida-regulated professional services (e.g. architect, engineer, design-builder, CM, accountant, appraiser, investment banker medical professional) at any tier, whether employed or independent, vicarious design liability exposure (e.g. construction means & methods, design supervision), value engineering, constructability assessments/reviews, BIM process, and/or performance specifications, Limits of at least \$1M per occurrence and \$2M aggregate; deletion of design/ build liability exclusions, as applicable, and maintained for at least 3 years after completion of work/services and City's acceptance of same. (IF APPLICABLE)
- H. <u>Railroad Protective Liability CRPL) Insurance</u> for construction within 50ft of operated railroad track(s) or where affects any railroad bridge, trestle, tunnel, track(s) roadbed, or over/under pass. Subject to involved rail road's approval prior to commencement of work. (IF APPLICABLE).
- Pollution and/or Asbestos Legal Liability Insurance where Agreement involves asbestos and/or environmental hazards/contamination risks (defined broadly, e.g. lead, mold, bacteria, fuel storage, underground work, cleanup (owned or non-owned sites), pollutant generation/transportation, marine/natural resource damage, contamination claim, restitution, business interruption, mold, fungus, lead-based paint, 3rd party claims/removal, etc.), with limits of at least \$1M per occurrence and \$2M aggregate, maintained for at least 3 years after Agreement completion. (IF APPLICABLE)

- J. Cyber Liability Insurance where Agreement involves portals allowing access to obtain, use, or store data; managed dedicated servers; cloud hosting services; software/hardware; programming; and/or other IT services and products are involved. Limits of not less than \$2M per occurrence and \$2M aggregate. Coverage sufficiently broad to respond to duties and obligations undertaken by Firm, and shall include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property/copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, damage to or destruction of electronic information, information theft, release of confidential and/or private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion, virus transmission, and network security. Coverage, as applicable and with sufficient limits to respond, for breach response costs, regulatory fines and penalties, credit monitoring expenses. (IF APPLICABLE)
- K. <u>Drone/UAV Liability Insurance</u> where Agreements involves unmanned aerial vehicles/drones. Coverage to include products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury with limits no less than \$1M per occurrence, and \$2M aggregate, may be provided by CGL endorsement subject to City's prior written approval. (IF APPLICABLE)
- L. <u>Longshore & Harbor Workers' Compensation Act/Jones Act</u> for work being conducted near, above, or on "navigable waters" for not less than the above Employer's Liability Insurance limit, (IF APPLICABLE)
- M. <u>Garagekeeper/Hangerkeeper/Marina Operator Legal Liability</u>
  <u>Insurance and/or Hull/P&IInsurance</u> where parking lot, valet, dealership, garage services, towing, etc., and/or operation of a hangar, marina, or air

plane/ship repairer, providing safe berth, air/watercraft storage/docking (on land/ in water), fueling, tours, charters, ferries, dredges, tugs, mooring, towing, boat/aircraft equipment/repair/alteration/maintenance, etc.; cover- age against liability for damage to vehicles air/watercraft, their machinery in Firm's care, custody, or control both private & commercial. Limits at least equal to greater of \$1M, value of max number of vehicles that may be in Firm's custody, or of most costly object in Firm's custody. (IF APPLICABLE)

- N. Property Insurance and Interruption of Business CIOB) Insurance where premises, building, structure, or improved real property is leased, licensed, or otherwise occupied by Firm. Property Insurance against all risks of loss to any occupant/tenant improvements at full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty, including fire, water, leak damage, and flood, as applicable, vandalism and malicious mischief endorsements. IOB by which minimum monthly rent will be paid to City for up to 1 year if premises are destroyed, rendered inaccessible or untenantable, including disruption of utilities, water, or telecommunications. (IF APPLICABLE)
- Liquor Liability/Host Liquor Liability where Firm directly or indirectly provides alcoholic beverages, limits of at least \$1M per occurrence and \$1M aggregate. (IF APPLICABLE)
- P. Educators Legal Liability Insurance where day care, after school program, recreational activities, etc. limits per G above. (IF APPLICABLE)

#### ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

ACCEPTABILTIY OF INSURERS- Insurance is to be placed with insurers licensed and authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida and who have a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A-:VII or, if not rated by A.M. Best, as otherwise approved by the City in advance and in writing.

ADDITONAL INSURED - City, its elected officials, departments, officers, officials, employees, and volunteers together with, as applicable, any associated lender of the City shall be covered as additional insureds on all liability coverage (e.g. CGL,AL, and Excess (Umbrella) Liability) arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Firm including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of Firm. Coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to Firm's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 10 20, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38 and CG 20 37 if later revisions used).

CANCELLATION/NON-RENEWAL — Each insurance policy shall provide that at least 30 days written notice must be given to City of any cancellation, intent to non-renew, or material reduction in coverage (except aggregate liability limits) and at least 10 days' notice for non-payment of premium. Firm shall also have an independent duty to notify City in like manner, within 5 business days of Firm's receipt from its insurer of any notices of same. If any policy's aggregate limit is reduced, Firm shall directly take steps to have it reinstated. Notice and proof of renewal/continued coverage/certifications, etc. shall be sent to the City's notice (or Award contact) address as stated in the Agreement with a copy to the following:

$\checkmark$	Contract Administration Department, 306 E Jackson St.	Tampa	FL 33602	Purchasing Department,	306 E Jackson Street,	Tampa, FL 33602
$\Box$	Other					

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE (COI) — to be provided to City by insurance carrier prior to Firm beginning any work/services or taking occupancy and, if the insurance expires prior to completion of the work or services or Agreement term (as may be extended), a renewal COI at least 30 days before expiration to the above address(es). COIs shall specifically identify the Agreement and its subject (project, lease, etc.), shall be sufficiently comprehensive to insure City (named as additional insured) and Firm and to certify that coverage extends to subcontractors' acts or omissions, and as to permit the City to determine the required coverages are in place without the responsibility of examining individual policies. Certificate Holder must be The City of Tampa, Florida.

<u>CLAIMS MADE</u> – If any liability insurance is issued on a claims made form, Firm agrees to maintain such coverage uninterrupted for at least 3 years following completion and acceptance of the work either through purchase of an extended reporting provision or purchase of successive renewals. The Retroactive Date must be shown and be a date not later than the earlier of the Agreement date or the date performance/occupancy began thereunder.

DEDUCTIBLES/ SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS (SIR) — must be disclosed to City and, if over \$500,000, approved by the City in advance and in writing, including at City's option being guaranteed, reduced, or eliminated (additionally if a SIR provides a financial guarantee guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses). Firm shall be fully responsible for any deductible or SIR (without limiting the foregoing a policy with a SIR shall provide or be endorsed to provide that the SIR may be satisfied by either the City or named insured). In the event of loss which would have been covered but for a deductible or SIR, City may withhold from any payment due Firm, under any agreement with the City, an amount equal to same to cover such loss should full recovery not be obtained under the policy.

<u>PERFORMANCE</u>- All insurance policies shall be fully performable in Hillsborough County, Florida (the County), and construed in accordance with Florida law. Further, all insurance policies must expressly state that the insurance company will accept service of process in the County and that the exclusive venue for any action concerning any matter under those policies shall be in the appropriate state court of the County.

PRIMARY POLICIES - Firm's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as to the City, its elected officials, departments, officers, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its elected officials, departments, officers, employees, and volunteers shall be excess of the Firm's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

SUBCONTRACTORS/INDEPENDENT ASSOCIATES/CONSULTANTS/SUBTENANTS/SUBLICENSEE - Firm shall require and verify that all such entities maintain insurance meeting all requirements stated herein with the City as an additional insured by endorsement (ISO FORM CG 20 38, or broader) or otherwise include such entities within Firm's insurance policies. Upon City's request, Firm shall furnish complete and certified copies of such entities' insurance policies, forms, and endorsements.

SUBCONTRACTOR DEFAULT INSURANCE CONTROLLED INSURANCE PROGRAM, WRAP-UP, Use requires express prior written consent of City Risk Manager.

UNAVAILABILTIY-To the fullest extent permitted by law, if Firm is out of business or otherwise unavailable at the time a claim is presented to City, Firm hereby assigns to the City all of its right, title and interest (but not any liabilities or obligations) under any applicable policies of insurance.

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION – With regard to any policy of insurance that would pay third party losses. Firm hereby grants City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of Firm may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Firm agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect such waiver, but this provision shall apply to such policies regardless.

WAIVER/RELEASE AGREEMENT - Where Firm has a defined group of persons who might be exposed to harm (e.g. participants in an athletic

event/program, volunteers) any waiver or release agreement used by Firm whereby such persons (and their parent/guardian as applicable) discharge Firm from claims and liabilities, shall include the City, its elected officials, departments, officers, officials, employees, and volunteers to the same extent as Firm.

# EXHIBIT G NOTIFICATION OF FUNDING SOURCES



# Failure to Complete, Sign and Submit Both Forms 10 & 20 SHALL render the Bid or Proposal Non-Responsive

# Page 1 of 4 – DMI Solicited/Utilized Schedules City of Tampa – Schedule of All Solicited Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/Suppliers) (FORM MBD-10)

Contract No.: 20-C-00032	Contract Name:	Water Main I	Improveme	ents Design-Build Project	
Company Name: Westr	a Construction Corp.	Address:		2th Ave East Palmetto, FL 34221	
Federal ID: 59-1765908	Phone: 941-723-1611	Fax: 941-		Email: mhester@westraconst.com	
Check applicable box(es). Deta  [ ] No Firms were contacted  [ ] No Firms were contacted  [ X ] See attached list of additional points. Note: Form MRD-10 must list 4	or solicited for this cont because: tional Firms solicited an	tract. id all supplem	nental info	rmation (List must comply to this form	n)

NIGP Code Calegories: Buildings = 909, General = 912, Heavy = 913, Trades = 914, Architects = 906, Engineers & Surveyors = 925, Supplier = 912-77

S = SLBE W=WMBE O = Neither	Company Name Address Phone, Fax, Email	Type of Ownership (F=Female M=Male) BF BM = African Am. HF HM = Hispanic AF AM = Agian Am.	Trade or Services NIGP Code	Contact Method L=Letter F=Fax	Quote or Response Received
Federal ID		NF NM = Native Am. CF CM = Caucasian	(listed above)	E=Email P=Phone	Y/N
W	Metzger & Willard, Inc. 8600 Hidden River Pkwy, Ste 550, Tampa, FL 33637	CF	925	E	Υ
59-1907168	813.977.6005, smartelli@metzgerwillard.com				
W	Kerrick Williams Photogrpahy, LLC 3703 W. Azeele Street, Tampa, FL 33609	BM	914	E	Y
27-2468473	813-254-7339, 813-254-7339				
W	Cornerstone Barricade 8209 69TH ST E., PALMETTO, FL 34221	BM	912	E	Υ
32-0270935	917-544-9741,mvachu@tampabay.rr.com				
W	Arehna Englneering, Inc.	CF	925	E	Υ
26-3947444	5012 W. Lemon St., Tampa, FL 33609 813.944.3464, [mcrory@arehna.com				
W	Valerin-Group, Inc. 3903 Northdale Blvd., Suite 100E, Tampa, FL 33618	CF	914	E	Υ
33-1142500	813.751.0478, valeriec@valerin-group.com				
W	Ariel Business Group 3706 W. McKay Ave., Tampa, FL 33609	BM	914	E	Υ
59-3359574	813-207-0003				
W	Quick Construction Solutions, LLC 4501 N. Saint Vincent St Tampa, FL 33614	HF	914	E	Υ
90-0972890	813-377-9997 quickcs@outlook.com				
0	McKim & Creed 3903 Northdale Blvd., Suite 115E, Tampa, FL 33624 813.549.3740,	Employee Owned	912-77	E	Υ
59-1907-168	dwehner@mckimcreed.com				
W	AviMan Management, LLC 550 Reo St. Ste. 300	BM	925	E	Υ
26-3669556	Tampa, FL 33609 302-377-5788, lovi@avimanmanagement.com				

It is hereby certified the	at the information	provided is an	accurate	and true	account o	f contacts and	solicitations	for sub-contr	acting
opportunities on this cor	ntract/								
./	/ /								
opportunities on this con Signed:	4	N	ama/Titla	Mat	Hootor / I	Project Manag	or Doto:	alielai	
oldried,		IV	ante/Tille	. IVIAL	L HESIEL / L	TORGETVIADAG	161 17500	2112121	

Matt Hester / Project Manager Date: 3/15/21

Failure to Complete, Sign and Submit Both Forms 10 & 20 SHALL render the Bid or Proposal Non-Responsive Forms must be included with Bid / Proposal

Name/Title:

MBD 10 rev./effective 02/2016

# Page 2 of 4 – DMI Solicited/Utilized

# Instructions for completing The Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/ Suppliers) Solicited Form (Form MBD-10)

This form must be submitted with all bids or proposals. All subcontractors (regardless of ownership or size) solicited and subcontractors from whom unsolicited quotations were received must be included on this form. The instructions that follow correspond to the headings on the form required to be completed. Note: Ability or desire to self-perform all work shall not exempt the prime from Good Faith Efforts to achieve participation.

- Contract No. This is the number assigned by the City of Tampa for the bid or proposal.
- Contract Name. This is the name of the contract assigned by the City of Tampa for the bid or proposal.
- Contractor Name. The name of your business and/or doing business as (dba) if applicable.
- Address. The physical address of your business.
- Federal ID. FIN. A number assigned to your business for tax reporting purposes.
- Phone. Telephone number to contact business.
- Fax. Fax number for business.
- Email. Provide email address for electronic correspondence.
- No Firms were contacted or solicited for this contract. Checking the box indicates that a pre-determined Subcontract Goal or Participation Plan Requirement was not set by the City resulting in your business not using subcontractors and will self-perform all work. If during the performance of the contract you employ subcontractors. the City must pre-approve subcontractors. Use of the "Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/Suppliers) Payments" form (MBD Form-30) must be submitted with every pay application and invoice. Note: Certified SLBE or WMBE firms bidding as Primes are not exempt from outreach and solicitation of subcontractors.
- No Firms were contacted because. Provide brief explanation why no firms were contacted or solicited.
- See attached documents. Check box, if after you have completed the DMI Form in its entirety, you need more space to list additional firms and/or if you have supplemental information/documentation relating to the form. All DMI data not submitted on the MBD Form-10 must be in the same format and have all requested data from MBD Form-10 included.

# The following instructions are for information of any and all subcontractors solicited.

- "S" = SLBE, "W" = WMBE. Enter "S" for firms Certified by the City as Small Local Business Enterprises and/or "W" for firms Certified by the City as either Women/Minority Business Enterprise; "O" = Non-certified others.
- Federal ID. FIN. A number assigned to a business for tax reporting purposes. This information is critical in proper identification and payment of the contractor/subcontractor.
- Company Name, Address, Phone & Fax. Provide company information for verification of payments.
- Type of Ownership. Indicate the Ethnicity and Gender of the owner of the subcontracting business.
- Trade, Services, or Materials indicate the trade, service, or materials provided by the subcontractor. NIGP codes aka "National Institute of Governmental Purchasing" are listed at top section of document.
- Contact Method L=letter, F=fax, E=Email, P=Phone. Indicate with letter the method(s) of soliciting for bid.
- Quote or Resp. (response) Rec'd (received) Y/N. Indicate "Y" Yes if you received a quotation or if you received a response to your solicitation. Indicate "N" No if you received no response to your solicitation from the subcontractor. Must keep records: log, ledger, documentation, etc. that can validate/verify.

If additional information is required or you have questions, please contact the Equal Business Opportunity Program - Minority and Small Business Development Office at (813) 274-5522.



# Failure to Complete, Sign and Submit Both Forms 10 & 20 SHALL render the Bid or Proposal Non-Responsive

# Page 3 of 4 – DMI Solicited/Utilized Schedules City of Tampa – Schedule of All To-Be-Utilized Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/Suppliers) (FORM MBD-20)

Contract No.: 20-C-00032 Contract Name:	Water Main Improvements Design-Build Project
Company Name: Westra Construction Corp.	Address: 1263 12th Ave East Palmetto, FL 34221
Federal ID: 59-1765908 Phone: 941-723-1611	Fax: 941-722-7049 Email: mhester@westraconst.com
Check applicable box(es). Detailed Instructions for comp [X] See attached list of additional Firms Utilized and a Note: Form MBD-20 must list ALL subcontractors To-Be-Uti [] No Subcontracting/consulting (of any kind) will be [] No Firms are listed to be utilized because:	all supplemental information (List must comply to this form)

NIGP Code General Categories: Buildings = 909, General = 912, Heavy = 913, Trades = 914, Architects = 906, Engineers & Surveyors = 925, Supplier = 912-77

S = SLBE W=WMBE O =Neither	Enter "S" for firms Certifled as Small Local Business Enterprises, "W" for firms Cer Company Name	Type of Ownership (F=Female M=Male) BF BM = African Am.	Trade, Services, or Materials	\$ Amount of Quote.	Percent
Federal ID	Address Phone, Fax, Email	HF HM = Hispanic Am, AF AM = Aslan Am, NF NM = Native Am, CF CM = Caucasian	NIGP Code Listed above	Letter of Intent (LOI) if available	Scope or Contract %
W	Metzger & Willard, Inc. 8600 Hildden River Pkwy, Ste 550, Tampa, FL 33637	CF	925	\$277,115	5.1%
59-1907168	813.977.6005, smartelli@metzgerwillard.com				
W	Kerrick Williams Photogrpahy, LLC 3703 W. Azeele Street, Tampa, FL 33609	BM	914	\$25,000	.41%
27-2468473	813-254-7339, 813-254-7339				
W	Comerstone Barricade	BM	912	\$75,000	1.42%
32-0270935	8209 69TH ST E., PALMETTO, FL 34221 917-544-9741, myachu@tampabay.rr.com				
W	Arehna Engineering, Inc.	CF	925	\$20,000	.33%
26-3947444	5012 W. Lemon St., Tampa, FL 33609 813.944.3464, jmcrory@arehna.com				
W	Valerin-Group, Inc.	CF	914	\$73,549	1.47%
33-1142500	3903 Northdale Blvd., Suite 100E, Tampa, FL 33618 813.751.0478, valeriec@valerin-group.com				
W	Ariel Business Group	BM	914	\$85,000	1.56%
59-3359574	3706 W. McKay Ave., Tampa, FL 33609 813-207-0003				
W	Quick Construction Solutions, LLC	HF	914	\$100,000	1.67%
90-0972890	4501 N. Saint Vincent St Tampa, FL 33614 813-377-9997 quickcs@outlook.com				
0	McKim & Creed	Employee Owned	925	\$97,913	1.64%
59-1907-168	3903 Northdale Blvd., Sulte 115E, Tampa, FL 33624 813.549.3740, dwehner@mckimcreed.com				

W	AviMan Management, LLC 550 Reo St. Ste. 300	BM	912-77	\$772,768.00	12.91%
3-3669556	Tampa, FL 33609				
	302-377-5788, levintavimanmanagement.com			1 1	

Total ALL Subcontract / Supplier Utilization \$1,526,345.00

Total SLBE Utilization \$ 0

Total WMBE Utilization \$1,428,432.00

Percent SLBE Utilization of Total Bid/Proposal Amt. = 0%; Percent WMBE Utilization of Total Bid/Proposal Amt. = 24.87%

It is hereby certified that the following information is a true and accurate account of utilization for sub-contracting opportunities on this Contract.

igned: Name/Title: Matt Hester / Project Manager Date: 3/15/2/

Failure to Complete, Sign and Submit Both Forms 10 & 20 SHALL render the Bid or Proposal Non-Responsive Furms must be included with Bid / Proposal

MBD 20 rev./effective 02/2016

Tampa

Page 4 of 4 DMI - Solicited/Utilized

# Instructions for completing The Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/ Suppliers) to be Utilized Form (Form MBD-20)

This form must be submitted with all bids or proposals. All subcontractors (regardless of ownership or size) projected to be utilized must be included on this form. Note: Ability or desire to self-perform all work shall not exempt the prime from Good Faith Efforts to achieve participation.

Contract No. This is the number assigned by the City of Tampa for the bid or proposal.

- . Contract Name. This is the name of the contract assigned by the City of Tampa for the bid or proposal.
- Contractor Name. The name of your business and/or doing business as (dba) if applicable.
- Address. The physical address of your business.
- Federal ID. FIN. A number assigned to your business for tax reporting purposes.
- . Phone. Telephone number to contact business.
- Fax. Fax number for business.
- Email. Provide email address for electronic correspondence.
- No Subcontracting/consulting (of any kind) will be performed on this contract. Checking box indicates your business will not use subcontractors when no Subcontract Goal or Participation Plan Requirement was set by the City, but will self-perform all work. When subcontractors are utilized during the performance of the contract, the "Sub-(Contractors/Consultants/Suppliers) Payments" form (MBD Form-30) must be submitted with every pay application and invoice. Note: certified SLBE or WMBE firms bidding as Primes are not exempt from outreach and solicitation of subcontractors, including completion and submitting Form-10 and Form-20.
- No Firms listed To-Be-Utilized. Check box; provide brief explanation why no firms were retained when a goal or
  participation plan requirement was set on the contract. Note: mandatory compliance with Good Faith Effort outreach
  (GFECP) requirements applies (MBD Form-50) and supporting documentation must accompany the bid.
- See attached documents. Check box, if after completing the DMI Form in its entirety, you need more space to list additional firms and/or if you have supplemental information/documentation relating to the scope/value/percent utilization of subcontractors. Reproduce copies of MBD-20 and attach. All data not submitted on duplicate forms must be in the same format and content as specified in these instructions.

# The following instructions are for information of Any and All subcontractors To Be Utilized.

- Federal ID. FIN. A number assigned to a business for tax reporting purposes. This information is critical in proper identification of the subcontractor.
- "S" = SLBE, "W" = WMBE. Enter "S" for firms Certified by the City as Small Local Business Enterprises and/or "W" for firms Certified by the City as Women/Minority Business Enterprise; "O" = Non-certified others.
- Company Name, Address, Phone & Fax. Provide company information for verification of payments.
- Type of Ownership. Indicate the Ethnicity and Gender of the owner of the subcontracting business.
- Trade, Services, or Materials (NIGP code if Known) Indicate the trade, service, or material provided by the subcontractor. Abbreviated list of NIGP is available at <a href="http://www.tampagov.net/mbd">http://www.tampagov.net/mbd</a> "Information Resources".

Amount of Quote, Letters of Intent (required for both SLBEs and WMBEs).

Percent of Work/Contract. Indicate the percent of the total contract price the subcontract(s) represent. For CCNA only (i.e. Consultant A/E Services) you must indicate subcontracts as percent of total scope/contract.

 Total Subcontract/Supplier Utilization. — Provide total dollar amount of all subcontractors/suppliers projected to be used for the contract. (Dollar amounts may be optional in CCNA depending on solicitation format).

Total SLBE Utilization. Provide total dollar amount for all projected SLBE subcontractors/Suppliers used for this
contract. (Dollar amounts may be optional in CCNA proposals depending on the solicitation format).

 Total WMBE Utilization. Provide total dollar amount for all projected WMBE subcontractors/Suppliers used for this contract. (Dollar amounts may be optional in CCNA proposals depending on the solicitation format).

Percent SLBE Utilization. Total amount allocated to SLBEs divided by the total bid/proposal amount.

Percent WMBE Utilization. Total amount allocated to WMBEs divided by the total bid/proposal amount.

If additional information is required or you have questions, please contact the Equal Business Opportunity Program - Minority and Small Business Development Office at (813) 274-5522.



Brad L. Baird, P.E. Deputy Administrator of Infrastructure 107 North Franklin Street Tampa, Florida 33602

> Email: Brad.Baird@tampagov.net Office (813) 274-7883

Date:

June 8, 2021

To:

The Honorable Orlando Gudes, Chairman, and Members of Tampa City Council

Through:

John Bennett, Chief of Staff

Through:

Jean W. Duncan, P.E., Administrator, Infrastructure and Mobiling

From:

Brad L. Baird, P.E., Deputy Administrator of Infrastructure

Subject:

City Council Session on June 17, 2021, Under Staff Reports and Unfinished Business

SIRE Item ID #68927: A resolution authorizing an Agreement between the City of Tampa and Westra Construction Corp., in the amount of \$5,640,792.98 for professional design-build services with a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) in connection with the 20-C-00032; Water Main Improvements Design-Build, authorizing the Mayor to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Tampa;

providing an effective date.

This memorandum is to provide the following information regarding the above SIRE item.

1. Contract Title: 20-C-00032 Water Main Improvements Design - Build Guaranteed Maximum Price I

2. Vendor: Westra Construction Corp.

- 3. Purpose: GMP 1 provides for the installation of approximately 21,571 lineal feet (If) of 6-inch through 12-inch diameter water mains to replace aged and/or under-sized 2-inch through 12-inch diameter water mains, as well as tapping and connecting to existing Water Main (WM), hydrants, services, abandonment in place of existing water main, surface restoration and all miscellaneous and appurtenant work. The work consists of furnishing, constructing, installing, testing, disinfecting and maintaining the proposed water mains in place until the constructed facilities are accepted by the City.
- Equal Business Opportunity Statement: Westra Construction Corp.'s overall WMBE attainment is 25% participation representing BBE=16.3%, WBE=7% and HBE=1.7%.
- Fiscal Impact: This resolution provides funding in the amount of \$5,640,792.98 for design-build services
  to Westra Construction Corp. for the Water Main Improvements Design Build project for use by the Water
  Department within the Water Bonds Series 2021 Capital Projects Fund.

## Thank you.

cc: Dennis R. Rogero, Jr., Chief Financial Officer, Revenue and Finance Department Mike Perry, Budget Officer, Revenue and Finance Department Gina Grimes, City Attorney, Legal Department Jan McLean, Senior Assistant City Attorney II. Legal Department Chuck Weber, P.E., Director, Water Department Michael Chucran, P.E., Director, Contract Administration Department Gregory Spearman, Purchasing Director Gregory Hart, Manager, Equal Business Opportunity Division Martin Shelby, City Council Attorney Shirley Foxx-Knowles, City Clerk

tampagov.net -